
Wednesday, March 14, 2018 
1:00 p.m. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE 

James E. "Ted" Roberts, Chair 
John R. Jakubek, Vice Chair 

Capri S. Cafaro 
Delores E. Crawford 

Allan K. Metz 

AGENDA 

A. Disposition of Minutes for Meeting Held December 6, 2017 

B. Old Business 

C. Committee Item 

1. Discussion Items 

Tab C.1.a. a. Audit Matrix Open Audit Recommendations Update 

Tod Hall 
Board Meeting Room 

This matrix tracks the progress of the implementation of recommendations for 
improvement or correction made by internal and external auditors. 

Tab C.1.b. 

Tab C.1.c. 

Tab C.1.d. 

Sarah Gampo, Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

b. FY18 Second Quarter Internal Audit Plan Update 
Sarah Gampo, Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

c. Anonymous Reporting Hotline Stats Update 
Sarah Gampo, Director of Internal Audit. will report. 

d. Enterprise Risk Management Update 
Sarah Gampo, Director of Internal Audit. will report. 

e. Procurement Audit 
Sarah Gampo, Director of Internal Audit. will report. 

Tab C.l.f. f. Single Audit Report 
Katrena Davidson, Controller. will report. 

D. New Business 

E. Adjournment 
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AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS DASHBOARD 

3rd QUARTER FISCAL YEAR 2018 

Audit Recommendations - Days to Current Deadline from 3/14/18 

- Payro ll irne En tries A(VlSlD I ~ II Q) 

201 S·O? 0 ~ PT Facu ty Con racts 

201·1-02-0?> Manual Payroll Checks REVIS! p fYII Q3 

2014-02•0! Payroll' rocess ,ng REVISED FY ~ a, 

AlVlstD nto QJ 2017-01-08 Gifts-for Benefit of Universltv Policv I 

l\fVr<ro fvtJ n1 2017-01-02 Reportlnl! from YSUF I 

REVJr.:ro nta o 2017-01-07 Afflllated Oraanizations Policy I 

nrVl\l:D FYll 'I I 2017-01-03 Individual gift sul)oort review I r 
RE\/ISfO rnl(ll 2017·01·04 Coordinating fundralslng efforts I 

/ ). . 

30 60 90 

Department 

l - - -
120 150 

Risk Category 

1u r•PM •·rl by· S.u ah ri.unpn ,n 1t>111 ;,il ,\ud1t 

]/13/20 18 

q[\'l'iifO ; ·1;,-1(V 

I I 

180 210 

Risk Level 

High 

□ Low 

□ Mode rate 

ON/A 

201 S-03-•)2 Tracl:rng Facultv Worklo;id f 

-
240 270 300 

Page l of 2 



Al IOIT RECOMMEND,\ TIONS DA'S HOOARD 

3rd OU/\R1[R ~ISCAL Yf AR ]018 

Audit Recommendations Status by Audit - Current Quarter vs . Prior Quarter 
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AUDIT ECOMMENDATIONS STA US - Y2018 Q3 
Audit RHOfflflt9ftd,'1l!On thifflbl r / ll jfflO 
Audi 
lhlta ln utd 

Hhi,, C1t11tgury 
PUtk l titd:I 

OMtion 

~Jc ,10.1~ 

201 ,4.---02~01 P.ayro ll Ti m e Ent ri~s 

Aur 20J.I 

2014-02-02 Payroll Pro,osslne 

PT 'i1Jc n~g,i1 1rn11 of t:1 111 10, 

ffOrhlt.1,tf 

Mo<itif.1lit 

11/J I/J'tn!i 3/Jl/10 11 

2014-02·03 Ma nu;1I Pavrnll Checks 

flor 201.t 

Hu111,1t1 H•••,<•ur., • 

Summary of R.etommendadon 

Thet1..· 1s a l;ack cf ~e-g,egation of dut1~~ for m.1nu.-1 p;1yroll 

11me cnine:. There arc employees who h,11i1e 1he .1b1hty lo 

ent._.r manu.11 umci entne'!. without add1 t1onal approv..=il o r 
v,•nf1 c,1t1on 1 tus l,:1rk of '5-egreua t10 n of dut•e~ mnea,;e~ th~ 

rn~ 1ha1 mco,ren o, fraudulenl paychecks ma•/ be issued 
M;-inu-ial l 1rnf" f!'n l 11(',- -s.ho ultl be 1,ac erl and an 1nd1vtdual 
-;.houhl Im au1gnl'd to confnm the- va hdil \l o f atl manual l jme 

••ru nr~ fh1\ 1ndMd11,1I ~hould ri-0 1 have .lcce~!. 10 cream .l 
m.inu,,I 1tmt! omry 

Tha t ,nn 11 mdiv!du31 with tho 11b~1ly to prr;ress/c.ilc;ul.11 0 
p11yrall Of 1he$-i!: {nd hJIUunl:O, l hov 1111 h1WC ,1b lh1v 10 gen~ ra te 
pAyC.hCC:ki and 11rld/Jppr(1va hours, ,rn,I 3 have dCCes.s 10 
1(1CO(ll p,\yroll In thU ga niHa! IC! r:18rit and 1ht! .1h1llty to rn kt; 
1JP11ornl lodg:ut (lof1lfl4'~- Th is IJck of secr~g .:1 11on wr l hin 1ha 
~iruro1; ~ of Rtir1or,11 fng t he rrn vroll crc ,1tl'.'s and mcro.1 s6~ mk 

nt tiuo r Of fraud \\ '1t h 111 1t paycheck o r p.lyro ll. Wt1 
ou;ommo,1d ,'I r'Dvlflw of 1h11 w orkflnw n op!. rrnn1 rnnninn 

I illcu lAt lnt) tM pi1 yroll 1h, oue h tha financia l rccorcfmg o f th o 
J)flyrofl nnd raa rnan ri&hn m the .s.yuem 10 mi\,i;im,2e 

<(IQ 10P,iHt0n of d 11 tro1t. 

I ht"re ,s .J I.Jclc. erf ~ec1ega1ton of duties with the m;,nual foH 

ell') r.h,•,k pr occs.-. fh('t(' .u ~ 1ndr11dual,; wh o can print 

m.rinu,11 cht!d, and who h;,vo acic:e:.s to rha: thcd: stoc~ An 

f1,Jw1du.i l who h;u 1h.-. abrl1t~• to ecn~rat,e J ,nan1.Jal (off 
cvde) check should not hJve JCC.t"~~ lo the check ~toclr. 

... 

Summary of Response 

Th~ Pilyroll Dt>pattmcnt, b,Hed on ;ipprovcd source 

documen t,:mon. 1s 1Psporu1bl" to enter houn/t1mc tor 1he 
m,norny o hourly llm<.'\ hl'ets thal were nol •leuromcallv 

prOCf'!)!ICrf throuch .. clf-!I L'1v,ce R,mnl!t ,,,_ .1 (om1wn"iJln1P. 

con trol. J ,~poi wrll be developed to td •nt1fv ,1ny hOUt\ 

manuallv entcrt>d This report w ill be cornp,1r~d 10 th1• 
sourcP dnn..1innn1-. by a drlfe1l'm 1nd1v1du,1f 1han !hf 

md1v1dual cn1cr1nr, from thl' source docurnen l\lso. he 

l3dnner t-lR/Pavroll -;ec:untv role classe-s werr reviewed and 
thr n11mbr1 ol mcl1vid11.1t._ w1 1h bo l h 1fo11••\ h,H b,, .. n 1f'ldu(ed 

and ,;egrl!gvted 

Socu r1 ty l'ICCc~s h,1:. beon rodos,11nod to limit the ability 10 
porform the ,1bov~ workfl aw 10 only th!? Assowne 
Conu olh:! r . fhuo lunr. t~m~ arc neceUillV for lhc Asscc1a 1~ 
Cootroll~ t In 0 "1~r to ,upa rvls:~ 1he Payrnll Oo j)J i'tnHtm ;1r, 

wcll ,,s t he s~nt)r~ I i'lc.countlng func1tom in the Controller 's 
Office. I lowevc,, .:,ny m:111ual ;\m,y of hP •H ~ hy lhct A,,ot: ,a1~ 
Cootrnlll'! r will ™!' mvle-wcd iO tho :11111it ,-opor, n1 en1ionad rn 

MinJgom~rnt '!i Rc!iponso t o Audit r-mdmR & 
A.et.:ommenrt:rnon 11 2. fhc secur ity ai;c:e,, for All of 1ho 0 1h01 

indivnh,a ls memion""d has ~en se11rcsiuct1 be tween 
ntt!' finn. proce~~1ng p,1yroll, nonc r:11lnA check,, a nd posllnR 

10 t ho Jo dger 

Current Status Comment 

Otopendel"lt upon creation of reports bv IT 

.... 

Dependent upon creation of rcporu by IT 

tn o rde , to 5t"f!t('(?.,t,e dul lt-5'. I fl md1v1du,1ll who hJd .tc:ces'lo Oepnnrlenl ucon creaHon o! repo1 ts by IT 

10 thf' bl.:lnJ.. Cher;-: 'i l OC:k r10 !on~er h3Vt! the ah,hty 10 1nn1DIC 

a "lilnual chccl( c-Hcpt for one p<'tson As a compe-m.Jtmr, 

c:ontrol. atw manui)I imtrv of hours by tha person v11II br• 
rf>'-'11"\'Jl'd ,n ,t,,.. .111d1t 1l'pnll men11onrd 1n M.inagement '> 

R~spomP la Audit rmdmg Ii'. RP<Qrnmt'nd.illon n] 

Prior Sta tus Comment 

lrnplt>m .. n tc'thon pushecl back due I f\ B.·rnnc.r tJ upgrade 

1mplcm~n1ation pushed hack duo.! to Uanncr 9 upgrade. 

lmp1eru!°'n1,H1(•rl pushed b,lC due 10 Uanncr q upc r,ule 



Audit fi•commend;,tlon flum b■ r I rl;,ni& 
Audft 
O!Ualui.-.d 

RltJi: C1ugary 
,tlt h:LHI I 

D!vllk:t'I · 

Or;Jl!'laf l)ci,dl! r,n 

2015·02·01 loc•llng PII 

Pl Secu rity o( Pr.rsol),1 liy 1d,rnt1fi31J~ 

lnfornmtlon 

tfov. lf> lil 

fnform11c1on Jedu,ola!lv 

Hir.h 

(tn<lnCIJ ,111'1 O!:ttn41j• Op1r.a u<m~ 

J/.,1n6rn J/JJ/2011 

CU~P 

201s.-02.04 usn Drives 

PT ~w 11ly o f P~r'i.on.i.11 !dr-111,habla 
lnfo1rn<1llon 

r.J6\r ]Ul~ 

2015-03-01 PT f.lrulty C::ontracH 

PT J\~di!-mic Proross.u 

Feb. 20lS 

I ti,m~r, Rg'i-0\.lrce .. 

LOW 

7/H/:01 

otf~Ol ti[i.Q.DSC 

J/ 11/lOU 

ZO l S-03-02 fracli:ing F.1 cu1ty workload 

l1n,1nnAI 

l~ /.31 /UHC, 11/11/ZDII 

lur~ti ,1y . fol;r11,11'r JJ, 20 IR 

Summo rv of RecommeodatH)n 

M, part of the rf'5.k ,us-e.s!t men1 r,mcess, the data clJH!fJ'c.itkm 
policy 111 th,: Uni\'enltv's "Sensit ive ln fornm t ion Poflf;y should 

bit im r,lementr.d . Highly sens itive PII data should be foc.1 1orl 
,o thA processes ,11,d rlam .s,y.,, t t n1 -a od ovaru.atod fo1 
jlddlt kmal c.ybcrse urlty prot-!ct 10 11 mciu urr. s. 

Tht• un1v1·r'i1 l1' cou ld conftjtu1e th(' systt-m to pro lub11 thL' 

co11vint: of ~en!.1rn,e da Ii\ onto USR dnves, one I he h,ghiy 
sons., t r,,r tfal.i has brr-o 1den1tfr,•d 1n ih" svsti;>m In thr- f'Vtn l 

th,H lht!11• •~ .li lcf:1 l1'11illt' 1:namr>~., need 10 u!te .1 USO drive, 

Thr U111vr1\11v rou!d cn,d,flurt" thll' ~y\lem to ('"nc.rvp1 
sem1i.ve d,u .1 whNl ,op1l!'d, or ,upplv i.r1ec.1ec1 e mplo..,.,•,. i 

wHh hard\'.1 ,lrt' t"n( typ l rd USI\ li,Hh rilN'(". Im U!"' ~'.!inn 

rnnvmv. Pu 

Wr, rocomml'lnd 1h;.:. p:m llmP. l,"u:ully ( o n1r;ach be 
ek!ctro 111c-.)lly g;:neratfld thrOtJR;h the Huma ,1 R1HO\Jrctt 
s:yste:m, aod the comract routert c~c tromcally to 1he 
applk;1ble people for e~ctrc,,t' jig_n.\lur~ 

We (CCO!llrl)('ild th.l l fu1 therms.ea/Ch be done 10 de!C(l'TUne 

it t~ Ballflr"f •1stcm h.a:s. 1h.e r.1pabd1 y lo r,1lc11i.ilr .rnrl ,,.,r 
1e,1Lhmi houn,. non l rach1nu hnle, ,ind IOt,11 fu ulty 

wo11clo-1lld. ;ind 11 !ht!' !ioys1em dol.'.'.i , th!.'!r\ th~ 11.'.it' of !ht• 1y,;.1,.m 

s.hauld bl.' 1mph.•m1.•11li'd 

Summary of Rt?Spon,e 

Network and Oata security is In the µtoceu of ev;,lt1Mme 

a rNlS known u, utili1e PII .:15 well iS the .uornJ1i: ,,nd 
.:1ccosslbill1y of such d.11r. on ,'l dopartmeni by department 
basis . 

The Un,vl"f .!.UV Wtll !C',11('\'I ft'S polKies & prOCl'durc~ wit h 

rega1rl 10 <">otr11ct111p: PII tn any mobile media or lo c.11 stfH.lJW 
111 lif,?ht of m\prwerf JCC!'S"> rPnncl10 n!io bt~1nr, rmplem('nl('d 

Th1\ re"'a• w 1m1I "'c.lurte coM"fo r.l11on nf \CJnnmc loc.11 
stora f!' fo r Pll a~ W" bPlre\o'f!' 1"11 .'.i to red locally pos••s ii morP 

\1g111 i1c.irt! -.cru11iv 1lm•,1 1 lhdn n11:i tJ1l t• \IClr ,1c<' 

Hu m .t rl rt'sourcu per.scnnel ill re wcrkmg 10 Implement 
PeopleAdmm for gencr.H 1ng part-11m ~ faculty con traca . 1111s 

p riPC'eS~ ,snot simple ..i s ll mqurrcs ihe in1°'1i'•'t kln o i tv,o 
sci11r1 ,a1~ u .1ck1ng w•aenu; o n to pull d.ttill h am t ho 

per:rnnneJ wstem ;rnd the other to lntccr-1t o wnh t he 
1tude,nl 1egis1r,1ton ~ystum. 

8,rnnc r riM i I;! Jb1l1tv tn monitor faculty worldo.1d, ;mil !lu•tr> 

,,. fJcul l y worl.lo,1d norH~a(hn\f:: capr1b1hty A more t.l!Jt.11led 

,:ui,11y,. ,s of Bann!", ~Y~~cm upab,l111es shoutd ~ comolrt"d 

fh;, ,ICJdrmH" rl1vi1,1on 11, r11r1rntfv wo1k 1n1! with tlw 

Rea1~1rnr·s o ffu;.t- ID 1rnplemPnl ~ full YI'"' schedulmi: ~nd 

rl"c1~1,.·wcm \','Ui'II\, thii W'St('rfl w ill rn,lk(" 1'11UC.h of 1ht' d,1t,1 

,1v;\1t,1b!e il l ;rn 1•J1he, time· and 1mprovl! lfackmP, and 

rC'JlOfllnC C,l(){('Ui'\ 

Currnnt Status Comment 

lnform,Hion Secur ity Officer has ful ly Impleme nted software 

tool th.11 monito rs h11rdwatc connected to the netwo rk fo r 
sens itive data . Potcntlal issuc.s identified a rc followed•u p by 
the ISO a nd Informa tion ecuoty An.-.ly~t Audit 
ru commooda!Ton has bcon adcqu.arnly add resstod. 

"" noted 1n prior comments, conf,guunn \YS!ems 10 proh1b1t 
coP,1mr. 10 USB dr11w1. ,~ no1 pr.ac11C..1I m. Unive,s11v 
env1,onmcn1 How evCI . the rnonrtonnr. co111Jol fo, ,en,1t1vf! 
diJl3 no1ed 1n I\R:;;:,OJ.5,.QJ .01 t'i. ;i mmpcm.;c111ng c:On!Joh l hil l 

n,1t11t.1te~ thP 11:!>b. ,,.lilted lo ,em1t ive d.:ila Aur!it 

1t"cornm(.• rlda11on has been .1dcqua1clv addrcssi>ct 

Pan-ume facutty hiling VJa PeoplcAdmin l.) of l/1 / 18. 
Recommeod,u,on Jj. open pending In ternal Audit valldJ l fon 

testing 

0:i f,l rrr:onfrgu1a11on ,s rlCCif'~S.UV before fOfrt'C l lVC JC ! IOn 

no ted ,n man,,gemcm rcspens.c c,1n be ,mp'crnl!'n t rii 

Prior St.11us Comment 

On schedule as plan ned ; no signifk3 nl chi'l nges noted 

On schf!'dulc •"' pl;mn.-d. no s1g 111r1canl change~ no ted 

lmplementa 10n pushed bade due to Banner 9 upgrade. 

lmplemen lrtl mn pu'l.hed b,1d. due 10 8.inne1 ul)Rrade 

P<lil,C 2 of-1 



Audfl ftecommend:oton mm,tn, / Namt 
Avd• 
Da te h 1u1d 

fthJIC1U•1j«Y 
RJJ,i. Ltttf 

""'''"" 
11m1t ~1-ditM 

2016•02-03 Non-University Housin& Options 

(If l!0u~lne, ,li"1 A4~kthncn Llfo 

Or t 70 LS 

1l11/ IIM•IY 
1nw 

f. tu,1~nt, ifJ(frHJnO• 

A/¥,(Jo1t1 U/J./1.017 

flllYP 

2017•01·02 Repo rt ing from YSUF 

M,IV 70) / 

f 111,lfl(I' ·""' Uu-,m••~-. f )p(' f,H lnn~ 

2017-01·03 Individual Rift support rev/ow 

YSUF Agrnmcnt Audi t 

Mav 2017 

flrl.1rlCIJ I 

rl/11 

f!rutnt4 ,1nd Bii"ltfn,c ()p~1.1 tlom 

1J/l J/l01? 6/JD/1.0l 8 

IJ~AOrnlr 11 , v,~o 

20 1 i'-01-011 Coo rdi!la ling fund raising e ffo rt s 

M,w JOI I 

J/1/.'.D I S d/JO/ZOII 

Summi1rv of Recommendatk,n 

lhoro are a number of hous ln3 opoons llstad on the 
trn1vor,i rv \1JOb5lte which ;tp~a r to be crndoued by the 
On1vo rsl1y1 yet no1 owned or 111An~ged by 1he Universi ty. Wa 
r~r.ommend milnaaemcnt consider the (oasib1/icy of ,"In 
ntt.lla t ion, or rAfo rrril ~ft l li~mam with the housing opuom 
OOl 0\-..i n ocl Of m;inauod by tho omco of HausinR ;rnd 

AcuJdence U(o. 

Q11d 1tcrly rOf)Orts from founcfa t1on a1e not 

Ct'HlS1-.1erH with reportmP. o bhi!.!l ton~ 1n the 

.1J~rt•en11•nt ;,nd do no t mrludf' mfo1mll1on 

ntt t('\itM\I to pro,1•ct r ,Hh llo,•, s for longterm 
hn,H'\1;1.11 pl ,in111nP, 

• Mon,to, .. 011wJ.111on 1r-po rtinii, for 

\'.n mpl .. 1nrr w1fh dt(l"t'rnPnl 
• ( vi.1lu ;ur the n11r•d !o r <tu pplrnllln t:11 

l••,Xlrttnfl 

• f'ler1odu~.1llv ("v,llualc the ,1c1eq uacy o l 

11•portmt: ham foundat1or1 

lndfvldual g1f1.s paMi 111 mullrple mcremenu 
tha t fn tot.11 c:e:ll!d $100,000 rn.1y not be 

ident,ftr"d to en.sure ~uppor tmB 
documdnt,11,on I, ohuin.id; m .uld1tlon, t his 
threshold Is no t rnv1owed fo r 
01)pfopn.11 toness o n 31 pencd k: l,;u,15, 

• Pcr!Odiealty ev,ilu,He crhorta for obt<1rmng 
and r~"'' wins suppot tlng do'-tnllQntdit,on 
for <lt!nlfl<, nt glf11 
• Ensure ~ulflclam 1nforrnr11 lo n •~ ohL11Mrl 
frnm 1ha Foumlatron 10 identify Rffls 
rn,HH Ins II bovn c,w11rln 

Proccdur(I'<. for coo1d1n11t1nP, funtir ."11'i>1ng 

rffo1 f '\ hf"l\'v~rr, 1h11 fnun<l.ttion and 

rhv1\10n/c:oll~f!t"/dopc1nrn c rH ,H" not m 

pl,1u Repor ting irom !ht' ~oundat M>n 10 

1n<l1 \1rlu.1I un1.,_c , c.1ty umU 1~ noI ,n :ht­

•lf?tttcrm~nt ,1nd dor., m,1 ,11>11c,u IO be 11'1 

pl .. r,. 
[nhanc(' lOOrd1n,:1 1ton of 
d1v1-.1011/totl(l1~~/dt- p,\1 tm ent levrl 
fumlrJ1S1or. uffofl<. w11h thd Found.1!1on 

wuh 1n!> llfut1on .1I nroct"dur.,.-. . Ensur~ 
p(nCrdrnt!' S 1ndwle, pt•Hodir rcportInr, from 
tlw rn1111d,111on .lMd rrqmrlmrt obhr,1111om. 
,lfO d11cu11H!'ll t1•d .. , lh{' ,l{lfCCmen l 

Summarv of Response 

WQ asree th/~ coukt be a potentaal Issue and will move 
fo rwi!rd with punulnR more formal affll ladons with s tudent 
hotuine focilltru nea r and ildjacent to campus. 

The ro11nc!.lt1on's repo rting reqwreme nts 

1n thr Jr,r 11emC"nl ilre presently under 
revrew M;rn11p,cme nt agrees !hat 
;:irocedl1rM ~hould be developed that more 
c:IPt1 rlv ,lf'frnr rrpo rt 1ne. req,.meme nt ,. 

Crner~ w,11 be dcvek>pcd 10 faar ate 
Jddlhon,1 ,;upport de t -,11 rega rding 
momh~, gift transfers 11001 the 
founda Ion. E,,cccutrvc over.s ieht committee 
wlll coUabora to with Foundation 1taff to 
devc:lop d rerio1trng template(s) ih a rnean.s 
of 1mprnvlng &ifl documentatron. 

MJ nag~mc nt :.grer\ \Ind will develop and 

:mftlcmcn1 ms111u1 1onal procedures o 
1•ntu1lCf> and ,:il1r.n fundr,31,.mg -,r:IN1l ~1 

w ,?h lhf" ioundat,on 

Current Status Comment 

Aere~me,H.1 nm hl place w ith .several non-un1vc,my housing 
aff~la tos. Recommenda tion closed. 

tmn'cmen t.lt1on date revised per.d,ng finahzal!on o f 

ilfpecmf' nt with YS\JF 

1mplemen1auon date revised penchng hnalmmon of 

,l&reement with YSUF 

lmplf'rne111,111on date revised pend1ng fm.·1'11,1tmn of 
JRreemrnt with YSUr lnl<?rnal Audit also evalua1mr, 

rd('nt1hcat1on of Jppropr1ate 1n 1v1du~1(.,I ilr:r:ountab t~ 
to""'tll'V" ;u :t 1on natl,'ld m manacemenl ru,.,;io r, ,.µ 

Prior Sta tus Comment 

Agretment templiltl! has been fi nali1ed and present ed to 

non-university ho using affilia tes !or signature. One affiliate 
ha5 signed an 3greement. Meetings ,·ue planned with 
romi\ln1ng th1eo housing affllla te.s to facllita le uxoc ullon o f 

the ng reomen1s, 

M.in.igc:rnenl ,1 c11on no1ed 1n summary response ,son 

schedule to be comple1ed by the 0 11g1n.1I de .1dlme 

Manasement action noted in summary response l.s on 
schedule to be completed by the ongmal deadline . 

M,, n.1gernl'nt acl1o n noted m summ i'l ry "'-"•pon~e I§ On 

~chedule 10 he r:ample1ed by the ong1n-'I deadlm,• 



A1.4tth Attomm.nda1mn Numbl!!r / rhm1 
l\udtt 
t'IIII lu l.lftd 

AIJk (;a l•&Vfl 
HlskUve-1 

D!.-l, Ori 

0r11111al D6ad.l(f?1t 

C\.'f1~t St1t11S 

2011,01,06 Fund bolanclng proco,s 

YS11r "111M mont Aud11 

May 1CJ1 1 

1wa,¥1if 

N/A 

lna11(n 1t11tf Uut lM(t Qj)f1 r.anon; 

t,/,0/,0ll 

l".Wl{j') 

2017-01 •07 Affilia t ed Organf1at1ons Policy 

VSUr At; ri!emcnl Audit 

M,l't' . 01 l 

2011,01•08 Gifts for Benefit of Llnhler<lty Polley 

M,iv 20 17 

fU1iJ IM'l111 

N/1\ 

flo,111r;t i111cl mt,1nes-1 OpAt.-.HOfl\ 

V1/lfJU. E/1D/:0IS 

11,t.i)U•Jr 'll'.1Vn 

fur~d.1y , l,•lnu ,11v l t, 1018 

Summarv of Rc commenda t k> n 

F111H1 hal3nc1ng proceu is not rlocumented. 
Fu~l b1t landngs were. not completed on a 
re1,ular perfodk: bi'1$ it Mkf do no~ Include: 
revti1v, by Ml mfllvldual ieparate from 1M 
r, rl!-pa,·er. 
Documented ruocedurvs for 1X'lriodk: fund 
bal,, ncmas tndu rl lns the frequeocv. od 
timing of porform.1nce and 1oparntl! 
suporv1!lOfV review. 

Ur>1verc,11v·~ Aff1!1a1ed Organ11at1ons Polley 
req1.we,;, lh"! UnIversI ty have represenla l1on 

on t hr- found.)t con's 80:i rd. however, 1h1,;, 

lf'-Qunt•rnent J'I. M l in the agreemeint and lht> 

University cannot ensufe comphanCl'.' 
Rf•v1ew Un1v~rs1ty Affilra ted Organ1zat1on" 

Pohcy and .. m,ure It altijM, with th-> 
1cl.1!10mh1p b.etwern the J-ounrl:lt10n .and 
th-> U01vt"rs1t ,md the fund1.a1sm~ ~ervIcr 

Jftfl•ernent 

Grit for thl' Benefit of !he Unrvors1ty PoltCy 
au1homru lh~ University h) refuse gift-' L": 
dOe$ not ,denu y who Mthm the UnNcrslty 

h,H 1hiS .-\u1horuv 
~nh•n"" GIit< for th• eonofit ot the 
unrvrusity rolrr.v by tdanrnvmg \'/ho with in 
1>wt Umvnrs1ty 1!. ,rnthunlerl to rofm.;o d g,ft 
10 rne Ufl rvers1ty. 

Summarv of Respo nse 

Ma11anement agr,1e it and will develop 
docume nted procedures for fond bA l,1ncing 
that wlll spt,clf~ nppropr/at.:: froq1.utncy ,ind 
urning In ndd!Oo11, a rnpar I l!i be Ins 
dev0Ji,pec1 1hat will tt rrnhlc offrcte nl 
superv1so1y revte w, 

M,,n.lgP-ml'nt agrC'i.''i. ,1nd w 1ll ,;,ubm1t a 
rev,sed pohcv 10 !he Boa,d nf Tru'o tees for 

1t-\ 1ew and con-.1c!erauon 

l\1anaaemont aarces and will .s ubmn a 
ro•11sed polky to the So.a rd ofTrustees for 
,ev tei-1.1od r.on"1dP.ril t/'On. 

Cur rent Status Comment 

!J 

Procedures have been documcnrnd and l)alanclnas are 
perform d monthly. Aecommcndotk>n clo.sed. 

lmplt>men1.1 110 n da1e re-v ised p<>ndinp, fmaluation of 

aP,!l"<"ll' nl w1lh VSUF 

lmpf@nle niauo,, da rn rnv,-.ed pendinR linali:.ahon o( 

aP, reem/ u with YSUF-

Prior Status Comment 

Pending In terna l Audit vr! dfica1lo0 o(Jrt1 plc menta t io11 . 

Management action no1ed In sut11ma ry response 1) on 

schrdule to be- completed by the OrlRtnal rleadhtte 

Management achon no ted 111 tummarv response is on 
.schedule to be cotnpl~ted by the original d eadline. 



Youngstown State Universi ty 

Office of Internal Audit 

Audit Plan Quarterly Update 

Fiscal Year 2018 

July 1, 2017 - December 31, 2017 

July 2017 - December 2017 Jan - Mar 

July - Sept Oct - Dec 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 

Audit and AHurance: 

Aud it Engag ments : 
-

· Purchasing 230 176 

Gr~nts/Resea rch Compliance 10 

Student Organizat100s -
Continuous Auditing/Analytics 99 177 
Open Audi t Recommendation Follow •up 20 10 
Hotline M oni toring .?. i 

351 378 
- -

Advisory "N EW 

- - - - -
Administrative & Planning: 

Administrative 87 61 
- -

Annual Planning, Audit Subcomm1lle Prep 

and Meetings 71 91 

Enterprise Risk Manag men t ass istan ce 25 
Professional Development & Training 4 30 

84 Holiday, Vacation/Sick 91 - -
246 298 

!Total Hours 

Inte r 1al Au it De esources : 

In te rnal Audit Director 

lni ern~I A11dit Intern (15-20 hours per week Aug . - Dec.) 

· difference in to tal hours from budget is clue to variability m in lem hour. 
'' adjusted from prior quarter's reporl due to roundin parUal hour~ 

-

FY18 to date as of December 31 Quarter3 

Total Budge t Diffe rence Budget 

- ---
- --- - - - - --

406 335 -71 90 
10 130 120 150 - ---. -- - - -- -

276 252 -24 144 

30 72 42 35 
- - ---

7 ~ .?.1 15 -
729 819 90 434 

- - - ---- - ----

90 -
- ------

-
148 113 -35 60 - - ----

162 113 -49 15 - - - -
25 40 15 40 
- ,__ _ - ---

34 2 0 -]4 10 -
175 160 -15 40 

544 446 -98 165 

l265 ! l1,. __ -... 8!· 689j 

prepared: 2/12/2018 

Comme nt 

audii work is complete; final written report will be issued by end of 03 

currently in planning phase; testing phase to begin in 0 ~ 

analytics completed thru Q2; Q3 w ill begtn April (03 ends 3/31/18; 

see"Anonymouf Reporting Rofline Stats" repor t 

recogniz ing the balance between advisory (consulting) and assurance 

to fulfi ll internal audit responsibi lities (see Internal Audit charter); 

assisting with evaluat ion and assessment of emerging risks from 

changes/events both internal and exte rnal 

ongoing ri sk assessment moved to newly added "Advisory" 

see "Enterprise Risk Management Implementation Status Update' 



Hotline Activjty 

YSU Anonymous Reporting Hotline 
Aggregated Statistics 
Fiscal Year 2018 Quarter 3 

As of 2/12/18 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 

Open from previous quarter 

Prior Fiscal 
Year Total 

..... R_ e1_10_1_·t_s_r_c_ce_i_v_ed _________ ....., ____ L..... ___ ..1,,, __ s _ _ ..... __ 6 __ ..,11 LI ___ s __ _..,1 

Closed 

Unsubstanti ated/ insuffi cient in format ion - I 
-- - '- - -

Process enhancements noted - -
-- --

Formal in ves ti gati on - -
~ - - - --

Referred - -
-- ----

Total Closed - I 

Under review at quarter end 

Reporting Method Quarter I Quarter 2 

Ethicspoinl Phone - -

Ethicspoi nt Website l -

Total : I -

Reporter Anonymity Quarter l Quarter 2 

Anonymous I -

Not anonymous - -

Total : I -

I 
-

-
-

-

.f. 
-

3 

2 

Quarter 3 

-

i 

5 

Quarter 3 

5 

-

s 

2 

-

-

1 
---

4 

Fiscal Year 
To Date 

Total 

-

6 

6 

Fiscal Year 
To Date 

Total 

6 

-

6 

.Prior Fiscal 
Ye.urTotal 

3 

5 

Prior :Fiscnl 
Year Total 

5 

5 



Youngstown State University 

Enterprise Risk Management Implementation 

Status Update to Audit Subcommittee March 14, 2018 

As of February 12, 2018 

• 29 risk interviews conducted Nov. 2017 - Feb. 2018 

• Of the five individuals asked, all have agreed to serve on the risk council 

• Additional 10-13 potential risk council members to be contacted by Risk Management Officer 

• Risk council estimated 15-18 total members 

• Risk Management Officer building working draft of risk register and planning first risk council 

meeting June/July timeframe 

• Internal Audit will continue to provide risk and control expertise in advisory/consulting capacity 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 
June 30, 2017 and 2016 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MESSAGE FROM PRESIDENT TRESSEL 

October 12, 2017 

Enrollment took a swing upward, the general fund budget remained in the black, several construction 
projects dot campus and students achieved at the highest national levels as Youngstown State 
University continued to press for increased excellence in fiscal year 2017. 

Highlights of the past fiscal year: 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

Fall enrollment vvent up for the first time in six years 
For the second consecutive year, the general fund balance ended in the black 
Standard and Poor' s upgraded our bond rating to A+, citing increased enrollment demand, a 
strong financial profile and solid management policies 
Our capital fund-raising campaign with the YSU Foundation neared the $50 million mark 
Freshmen ACT and high school GPAs hit all-time highs 
2,387 students earned degrees, the second most in our 100-plus year history 
Faculty and staff earned nearly $9 million in research grants 
A new Barnes & Noble student bookstore, featuring a Starbucks cafe, opened on Fifth A venue 
All University residence halls reached capacity as did the first and second phase of the private 
University Edge student apartments 
Construction underway for more private student apartments and retail development on Wick 
Avenue 
Our Ethics Bowl, Steel Bridge and Moot Court teams were nationally-ranked 
Our scholar athletes won six Horizon League titles, and the football team went to the national 
championship game 
We were nationally recognized for our recycling efforts, were again named a Tree Campus 
USA by the Arbor Foundation, and, for the ninth consecutive year, we \Vere designated a 
Military Friendly university 

The many achievements of fiscal year 2017 provide a springboard for even more opportunities in fiscal 
year 2018 . We look forward to the visit of the higher Learning commission to re-affirm our 
accreditation and provide us with guidance on how to pursue excellence at even higher levels. We 
kick off the public phase of our $100 million capital campaign to fund a variety of projects aimed at 
enhancing services to ensure the continued success of our students. And we re-commit ourselves to 
serve as a hub of innovation, leadership and inspiration for our community, the state and beyond. 

Sincerely yours 

James P. Tressel 
President 



~ Crowe Horwath. 

To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 
Youngstown, Ohio 

I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Financial S tatements 

Crowe Horwath LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Horwath lntematlonal 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented 
component unit of Youngstown State University (the "University"), a component unit of the State o f Ohio, as of and 
for the years ended June 30. 20 17 and 20 16, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collect ively 
comprise the University 's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

M[lll[lgeme11t •-~ Respomibili(I' f or tile Fi11a11ci[I/ Stateme11ts 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fa ir presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor 's Respo11sibili~1• 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audi t the 
fi nancial statements of the Youngstown State University Foundation, which represents the enti re discretely presented 
component unit o f the University. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has 
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Youngstown State University 
Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing 
standards genera lly accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government 1l11diting Sta11dards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free from 
material misstatement. The fi nancial statements of Youngstown State University Foundation were not audited in 
accordance with Government Auditing Sta11dards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, includ ing the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant lo the entity's preparation and fa ir presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity 's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as eva luating the overall presentat ion of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors. the financial statements referred to above present 
fa irly, in a ll material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities o f the University and its 
discretely presented component unit, as of June 30, 20 17 and 20 16, and the respective changes in fi nancial position 
and. where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with account ing principles generally 
accepted in the United States o f America. 
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Otller Matters 

Required Supplementa,y Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis (MD&A) on pages 4 through 21, the Schedules of the University's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability on page 64, and the Schedules of the University's Contributions on page 65, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infom1ation because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fom1ing opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the University's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures offederal awards as required 
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, the Message from President Tressel, Board of Trustees listing and 
Executive Officers listing are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The Message from President Tressel on page I, Board of Trustees listing on page 66, and Executive Officers listing 
on page 67 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 12, 2017 on our 
consideration of the University's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
University's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Columbus, Ohio 
October 12, 2017 

3 

lttl'JWt J-b,~u.P 
Crowe Horwath LLP 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Management' s Discussion and Analysis section of Youngstown State University ' s (YSU or 
University) Financial Report presents a discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the 
University during the fiscal year ended June 30 2017 with comparative information for the fiscal 
years ended June 30 2016 and June 30, 2015. This discussion has been prepared by management 
and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the accompanying notes that 
follow. 

Introduction 

Youngstown State University, an urban research university emphasizes a creative, integrated 
approach to education, scholarship, and service. The University places students at its center; leads 
in the discovery , dissemination , and application of knowledge; advances civic scientific, and 
technological development; and fosters co llaboration to enrich the region and the world. 

Youngstown State University traces its beginnings to a commercia l law course offered by the 
Young Men's Christian Association (YMCA) in 1908. The YMCA had offered high school level 
and vocational courses since 1888, but wanted to meet the college-level needs of area residents in 
a society undergoing rapid industrialization and urbanization. The YMCA offered courses on law, 
business and engineering; and in 1910, even instituted a School of Law that granted no degree, but 
prepared students to take the bar exam. In 1916, the YMCA incorporated all of its education work 
under the Youngstown Association School. By the early l 920 ' s the Ohio Board of Education 
granted the School of Law the power to confer the Bachelor of Science in Law degree and in 1924 
the School of Commerce and Finance the right to confer the bachelor' s degree in commercial 
science. The YMCA also offered courses to prepare teachers for certification, a program that 
evolved by 1927 into a separate school named Youngstown College and recognized by the State 
Department of Education. Throughout the I 920s, the schools of law and commercial science were 
called the Youngstown Institute of Techno logy, which began a move from downtown to the 
present location with the purchase of several mansions owned by the Wick family . 

In 193 1, the YMCA constructed its first building the present-day Jones Hall , and appointed 
Howard Jones as the educational director. By the mid- I 930s, the Board of Directors decided to 
incorporate with the official name of Youngstown College separate from the other YMCA 
educational efforts; they appointed Howard Jones as the first president, a position he held until 
1966. In 1944. the trustees of the YMCA transferred contro l of the institution to the members of 
the Corporation of Youngstown College, and in 1955 the corporation was rechartered as The 
Youngstown University. The University joined the Ohio system of higher education in September 
1967 as Youngsto,v11 State University. 

Today, Youngstown State University consists of the Co llege of Graduate Studies and six 
undergraduate colleges: the Williamson Co llege of Business Administration; the Beeghly Col lege 
of Education; the College of Creative Arts & Communication; the Bitonte College of Health and 
Human Services; the College of Libera l Arts and Socia l Sciences; and the College of Science, 
Technology. Engineering, and Mathematics. Degrees offered include associate, bachelor's 
master's, and doctorate . 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

The University is located on a 145-acre campus near downtown Youngstown, Ohio and is 
equid istant (approximate ly 60 mi les) from both Pittsburgh and Cleveland. Fa ll 2017 enrollment 
was 12,644. 

Using the Financial Statements 

The University' s fi nancial report includes three bas ic fi nancial statements: the Statement of Net 
Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Posi tion, and the Statement of 
Cash Flows. These financ ia l statements are prepared in accordance with the fin ancial reporting 
format required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board s (GAS B) Statements No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments, as amended by GAS B Statement No. 6 1, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus; 
and No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management 's Discussion and Analysis.for Public 
Colleges and Universities, as amended by GASB Statements No. 37, Basic Financial Statements 
- and Management 's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus and 
No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. These statements establ ish standards fo r 
external financial reporti ng fo r publi c colleges and un ivers ities and require that financial 
statements be presented on a basis to foc us on the financial cond iti on of the Uni versity , the results 
of operations, and cash fl ows of the University as a whole. 

During fiscal year 2015, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and 
Financial Reporting.for Pensions- an amendment ofGASB Statement No . 27 and GASB Statement 
No. 71 , Pension Transition of Contributions Made Subsequent lo the Measurement Date - an 
amendment of GASE Statement No. 68. These statements signi fica ntly rev ised accounting fo r 
pension costs and liab ilities. 

Prior to GASBs 68 and 7 1, the accounting fo r pension costs, was focused on a funding approach, 
which limited pension costs to contri butions annual ly required by law, which may or may not be 
suffic ient to ful ly fund each pension plan's net pension liability. 

Under the standards required by GASBs 68 and 71, the net pension liability equals the Uni versity ' s 
proportionate share of each pension plan's co ll ecti ve present va lue of estimated future pension 
benefi ts attributable to active and inactive employees ' past service minus plan assets ava il ab le to 
pay these benefits. Pension obligations whether funded or unfu nded, are part of the ' 'employment 
exchange" - that is, the employee is trading hi s or her labor in exchange fo r wages , benefits and 
the promise of a fu ture pension. The unfunded portion of thi s pension promise is a present 
obligation, part of a bargained-fo r benefi t to the employee, and is reported by the Uni versity as a 
li abili ty since the benefit of the exchange was received. 

The nature of Ohio ' s statewide pension systems and state law governi ng those systems requires 
additio nal explanation in order to prope rly understand the info rmation presented in these 
sta tements. The Uni versity is not respons ible fo r certain key facto rs affecting the balance of thi s 
liability. In Ohio the employee shares the obligation of fun ding pension benefi ts with the 
employer. Both employer and employee contribution rates are capped by the State statute. A 
change in these caps requires action by both Houses of the General Assembly, and approva l of the 
Governor. Benefit provis ions are also determined by State statute . The employee enters the 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT,S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

employment exchange with the knowledge that the employer' s promise is limited not by contract 
but by lav,1• The employer enters the exchange also knovving that there is a spec ific, lega l limit to 
its contribution to the pension system. In Ohio, there is no lega l means to enforce the un funded 
liab ility of the pension system against the public employer. State law operates to mitigate/lessen 
the obl igation of the public employer to the employee, because all parties enter the employment 
exchange with notice as to the la,v. The pension system is respons ible for the administration of 
the plan. 

Most long-term liabi li ties have set repayment schedules or in the case of compensated absences 
(i.e. sick and vacation leave), are satisfied through paid time-off or termination payments. There 
is no repayment schedu le for the net pension liab ility . Changes in pension benefits, contribution 
rates, and return on investments affect the balance of the net pension liability, but are outside the 
control of the public employer. In the event that contributions investment returns and other 
changes are insufficient to keep up with required pension payments, state statute does not 
assign/identify the responsible party for the unfunded portion. Due to the unique nature of how 
the net pension liabi lity is satisfied, this liability is separate ly identified wi thin the long-term 
liability section of the Statement of Net Position. 

In accordance with GASBs 68 and 71 the University's statements, prepared on an accrual basis 
of accounting, include an annua l pension expense fo r the proportionate share of each pension 
plan's change in net pens ion liabi lity. 

Overall key presentation elements of the financial statements include: 

• Assets and liabilities are categorized as either current or noncurrent. Current assets and 
liabi li ties wi ll be consumed or fu lfi lled wi th in one year. 

• Revenues and expenses are categorized as either operating or non-operating. Significant 
recurring sources of the Un ivers ity ' s revenues, including State of Ohio (State) 
appropriat ions, certain grants, gifts and investment income are cons idered non-operating, 
as defined by GASB Statement No. 35. 

• Univers ity scholarships that represent reduced tuition (i.e. are app lied to student accounts 
rather than refunded to students) are shown as a reduction of tuition , fees and other student 
charges. while payments made directly to students are presented as scholarship expense. 
Third party scholarshi ps are treated as though the students made the payments themselves . 

• Capita l assets are reported net of accumulated depreciation . 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity . as amended by 
GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whe ther Certain Organizations Are Component Units, and 
GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, The Youngstown State 
Un iversity Foundation (YSUI· or Foundation) is treated as a component unit of the Univers ity. 
The Foundation is discretely presented in this report by presentation of the individual financial 
statements immed iate ly followi ng the Un iversity's respective GASB fi nancial statements. 
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Additional information on thi s component uni t is contained in Note 16. Management's Discussion 
and Analys is focuses on the University and does not include the component un it. 

The Statements of Net Position 

The Statement of Net Pos ition presents the financia l position of the University at the end of the 
fisca l year and inc ludes al l assets ( current and noncurrent), deferred outflows of resources, 
liabi lities ( current and noncurrent), deferred inflows of resources, and net position of the 
Un iversity . Current assets are class ified as such if they are ava ilable to satisfy current liabi li ties, 
wh ich are genera lly defined as being due within one year of the date of the Statement of Net 
Position. Net position is one ind icator of the financia l condition of the University, while the change 
in net position is an ind icator of whether the overall financ ial condition has improved or worsened 
during the year. 

A summarized comparison of the University's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liab ili ties, 
deferred inflows of resources, and net position at June 30, 20 17, 20 16, and 2015 fo llows: 

As se ts 
Cun-ent as sets 
Noncun·cnt ass ets 

Cap ita l as s ets ne t 
Oth er asse ts 

Tota l no nc urrent assets 
Tota l J\s s cls 

De fo1Ted Outflows o f Resources 

Liabilit ies 
CurTe nt liabil it ies 
N onetme nt liabilities 

To tal Liabilit ies 

DefetTed lnllows o fRcsourees 

Tota l Net Positio n 

Net Pos it io n 
Net inves tment in capital as e1s 
Res tricted 
Unres tric tcd 

To tal Net Po ition 

June30, 2017 

$ 77,364.228 

218,861 ,982 
26,72 1,064 

245,583,046 
322,947,274 

42,454,242 

26,543.505 
267.534.628 
294,078. 133 

9,366, 129 

$ 6 1,957,254 

$ 135.402,71 3 
31 ,380.692 

( I 04.826. 15 1) 
$ 61,957,254 

June 30, 20 16 June 30, 2015 

$ 69.02 1, 130 $ 66.4 I 9,457 

2 14,466,245 198,752,775 
28,553,736 26,855,908 

243,019,981 225,608,683 
3 12,041 ,11 1 292,028, 140 

26,126,689 10,611.171 

24,043.294 22,283,707 
235,587,218 204, 168, 166 
259.630,51 2 226,451 ,873 

15,366,387 18,680,757 

$ 63, 170,901 $ 57,506,68 1 

$ 134,289,273 $ 132,793,340 
29,783,434 30,045.809 

( I 00,90 1,806) ( I 05.3'"'2,468) 
$ 63, 170,90 1 $ 57,506,681 

Current assets include unrestricted and restricted cash and cash equiva lents, investments that 
mature with in one year, rece ivables, inventories and other short-term assets. Noncurrent assets 
include unrestri cted investments that mature in more than one year and investments that are 
restricted by donors or external parties as to their use. Also included are receivables deemed to be 
collectible in more than one year and capita l assets. Current assets increased $8.3 mil lion from 
fisca l year 20 16 to fiscal year 20 17 and increased $2.6 mil lion from fiscal year 20 15 to fiscal year 
2016. Noncurrent assets increased $2.6 mi llion from fisca l year 20 16 to fisca l year 20 17 and 
increased $ 17.4 million from fisca l year 2015 to fiscal year 2016. 
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Deferred out fl ows of resources include resources where the consumption is appl icable to a future 
reporting period, but does not require further exchange of service. Deferred out tlo\-VS include items 
relating to pensions and increased $ I 6.3 million from fi scal year 20 16 to fisca l year 20 17 and 
increased $ 15 .5 mi II ion from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 2016. 

Current liabilities include all liabilities that are payable within the next fi sca l year. Unearned 
revenues, principally from summer programs, are also presented as current li abi lities. Liabilities 
that are due to be paid beyond the next fiscal year are reported as noncurrent liab ilities and include 
debt, compensated absences and net pension liab ility. Current liabilities increased $2.5 million 
from fiscal year 20 16 to fiscal year 2017 and increased $1.8 million from fiscal year 20 15 to fiscal 
year 20 16. Noncurrent li abi li ties increased $3 1.9 mi Ilion from fiscal yea r 2016 to fiscal year 2017 
and increased $31.4 million from fiscal year 20 15 to fisca l year 20 16. 

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acqu isition of resources that are app licable to a future 
reporting period. Deferred inflows ofresources include unamortized concession arrangements and 
items relating to pensions. Deferred inflows of resources decreased $6 million from fiscal year 
2016 to fisca l year 201 7 and decreased $3.3 million from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 2016. 

Assets 

Assets primari ly consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, receivables and capital assets . 
The following table summarizes balances at: 

Jun e 30. 2017 June30,2016 June 30, 2015 
Cas h and cas h equ iva lents $ 20."'47,943 $ 15,893.972 $ 11,472,553 
Inves tments 68,312,36 1 63,322,045 63,058,179 
Accounts, loans and pledges receivab le, net 13,766 885 16 632.850 15 579, 115 
Cap it a l as se ts. net 2 18.86 1,982 2 14,466,245 198,752 775 
Other 1,658,103 1,725,999 3, 165,5 18 

Tota l Ass ets $322,947.274 $ 3 12,04 1, I I I $ 292,028, 140 

Cash and cash eq ui valents increased $4.5 million or 28% from fiscal year 20 16 to fiscal year 201 7. 
The increase was primarily due to an overal l net decrease in cash used in operating activities 
combined with the expectation of future cash needs fo r operations. Deposits held by Trustee 
totaled $2.4 million at June 30, 201 7 compared to $3 .7 million at June 30, 20 16. Investments 
increased $5 million or 8% from fiscal year 20 16 to fiscal year 2017. Thi s was primarily due to 
net unrea lized gai ns resulting from a favorable market environment. Unrealized investments fro m 
non-endowments are non-spendable in accordance with the University ' s non-endowment 
investment pol icy . Refer to Notes 3 and 4 for add itiona l information on cash and cash equivalents, 
and investments. 

Overall , net accounts, loans and pledges receivable decreased $2 .9 million from $16.6 million at 
June 30, 20 16 to $ 13.7 million at June 30, 20 17. Net accounts receivable decreased $ 1.6 million 
or 12% from $13 million to$ I 1.4 mi ll ion. The decrease was due to increases in year end act ivity 
on grant subawards, new grants and severa l capital projects, combined with decreases in student 
rece ivables clue to more emphasis on student financia l awareness, bookstore receivables due to 
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outsourcing the operations of the bookstore and gifts ra ised by YSU F on behalf of YSU in the 
month of June over the prior year. Net loans decreased $0.4 million due to an increase in Perkins 
loans col lected in fisca l year 2017 compared to fiscal year 20 16. Net pledges decreased $0.2 
million or 30% due to co llection of pledged gifts. New pledges are recorded by the Foundation in 
accordance with a fundraising agreement between YSU and YSUF. See Notes 5 and 6 for 
add itional information . 

Cash and cash equ iva lents increased $4.4 mill ion or 38 .5% from fisca l year 20 15 to fisca l year 
2016. The increase was primari ly due to unspent note proceeds of $3.3 mi llion for an energy 
conservation project financed during fi sca l year 20 16 and an overal l net decrease in cash used in 
operating activities. Deposits held by Trustee tota led $3.7 million at June 30 2016 compared to 
$1. 7 mi II ion at June 30, 20 15. Investments remained fla t from fiscal year 20 15 to fiscal year 2016. 
Endowment principal and operat ing reserves are included in noncurrent assets and are invested in 
long term maturities . 

Overall , net accounts, loans and pledges receivable increased $ 1 million from $15.6 mi ll ion at 
June 30, 2015 to $ 16.6 mi ll ion at June 30, 20 16. Net accounts increased $2.3 mi llion or 21 %. The 
increase was due to several factors including increased yea r end activ ity on a new state grant and 
several capita l projects, an increase in funds raised by YSU F on behalf of YSU in the month of 
June over the prior year as we ll as the timing of receipt of gifts used to suppo1t future capita l 
projects. An increase was also noted due to the implementation of the College Credit Plus program 
in the Fal l of 20 15. Net loans decreased $0.3 mi llion due to a decrease in the number of Perkins 
loans di sbursed in fisca l year 20 16 compared to prior yea rs. Net pledges decreased $0.9 million 
or 35% pri mari ly due to payments on pledges for the Williamson Co llege of Business 
Administration (WCBA). 

At June 30, 20 17, the Uni versity had $2 18,861,982 in capital assets, net of accumu lated 
depreciation. Depreciation tota led $1 1,974,632, $ 11 ,059,009, and $ I 1,455, 171 in fiscal years 
20 17, 20 16, and 20 15 respectively. Detai ls of net capital assets are shown below. 

June 30. 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 
Land $ 16,274. 150 $ 16, 149,400 $ 16.093,678 
Buildin gs. net I 06.222.258 111. 129,063 I 16.250,393 
Improvements lo b uild ings, m: t 58,334,707 44, 170, 107 37,309,800 
Improvements o th e r th an buildings, ne t 20,597,910 18,430.2 19 16.922, 143 
Cons tru c t io n in progress 7,626,467 18,623,424 6, 129,774 
M oveab le equipment an d li1rn it un.:, ne t 8,533,399 4.833.535 5,2 12. 193 
Vehic les. ne t 374.963 295.031 199,328 
His torical treasures 835,466 835.466 635,466 
Capital lease asset 62 ,662 

Total Rpital Assets , net $2 18,86 1,982 S 2 14,466,245 $ 198,752,775 
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Major capital activity during fisca l year 2017 included completion of a steam plant, that enabled 
YSU to produce its own steam heat, exterior repairs to Stambaugh Stadium and Moser Hall , and 
safety updates to the Wick Parking deck. In addition, instructional space upgrades were made to 
Cushwa, DeBartolo, and Ward Beecher Halls and fiv e buildings received system upgrades. 
Construction in progress includes the construction of a new Barnes & Noble bookstore, 
renovations to Meshe l Hall , and the replacement of the Jones Hall roof. 

Major capital activity during fiscal year 20 16 included completion of the Melnick Hall renovation. 
electrical substation refurbishment and expansion, stad ium lighting upgrade, and Stambaugh 
Stadium scoreboard system. In addition three campus buildings rece ived new roofs, restroom 
renovations were completed in three buildings, and elevator repairs were completed in two 
buildings. Construction in progress includes construction of a steam plant as wel l as building 
exterior repairs and updates to the Wick Parking Deck. 

Major capital activity during fiscal year 2015 included completion of the Veteran 's Resource 
Center, the second phase of the De Bartolo Hall improvements, and renovations to Beeghly Center. 
In addition, six campus buildings received new roofs and elevator repa irs were completed in four 
buildings. Construction in progress includes continued construction on Melnick Hall , additional 
roofing projects, and a new scoreboard system and upgraded lighting to Stambaugh Stadium. 

See Note 7 for additional info rmation on capita l assets. 

Other assets remained flat from fiscal year 20 16 to fiscal year 201 7. 

Deferred Outf/owt,/]n[lows o(Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources that are applicable to a 
future reporting period, but do not require fu1ther exchange of goods or serv ices; whereas deferred 
inflows of resources represent the acq uisition of resources that are applicable to a future reporting 
period. The following table summarizes balances at: 

Defon-ed Ou l tlo ws of Res 0 1.1 rces 
Pens ion OPERS 
Pens ion STRS 
Bond refund in g 

Tota l Deferred Outflows or Re. ources 

Deferred Ln flows o f Resources 
Service concessio n ag reements 
Pens ion OPERS 
Pens ion STRS 

Tota l De fe n-ed In nows o f Res ources 

June 30. 20 17 
$ 20.900,096 

19,500,737 
2.053 409 

$ 42,454,242 

June 30, 2017 
$ 570,000 

1.895,450 
6.900,679 

$ 9.366, 129 

.lune 30, 20 16 June 30. 2015 
$ 16,422,322 $ 4,448.632 

9,704,367 6, 162,539 

$ 26, 126,689 $ 10,6 11 , 171 

June 30, 20 16 June 30, 2015 
$ 657,500 $ 745,000 

2,2 14.446 635.67 1 
12.494,44 1 17,300,086 

$ 15,366,387 $ [8,680,757 

Included in deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are items relating to 
pensions and service concession agreements. Certain elements impact ing the change in the net 
pension liability have a longer term perspective than the current year, therefore to reduce vo latil ity 
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these elements are amortized over a closed period of specified duration. These include differences 
between expected and actual experience, changes of assumptions, net differences between 
projected and actual earnings of pension plan investments, and changes in the proportionate share 
of contributions. These elements can be reflected as either a deferred outflow of resources or a 
deferred inflow of resources. 

Deferred outflows of resources increased $16.3 million or 62.5% from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal 
year 2017. The increase was largely due to a $9.4 million increase in the amount attributed to 
changes in assumptions in the OPERS pension plan and a $4. 7 million increase in the amount 
attributed to the net difference between projected and actual earning on pension plan investments, 
including a $9.7 million increase attributed to the STRS Ohio pension plan and a $5 million 
decrease attributed to the OPERS pension plan. In addition, $2 million was recorded as a deferred 
outflow clue to advance refunding a portion of the 2009 bond series in fiscal year 2017. 

Deferred inflows of resources decreased $6 million or 39.1 % from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 
2017. The decrease ,.vas primarily due to a $7.2 million decrease in the net difference between 
projected and actual earnings on STRS Ohio pension plan investments and a $1.6 million increase 
due to a change in the STRS Ohio proportionate share of contributions. 

Deferred outflows of resources increased $15 .5 million or 146.2% from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal 
year 2016. The increase was largely due to a $12 million increase in the amount attributed to the 
net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPERS pension plan investments and a 
$3.6 million increase in the amount attributed to the differences between expected and actual 
experience for the STRS Ohio pension plan. Deferred inflows ofresources decreased $3.3 million 
or 17.7% from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 2016. The net decrease was primarily due to a 
combination of a $ I 0.1 million decrease in the net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on STRS Ohio pension plan investments and a $5.3 million increase due to a change in 
the STRS Ohio proportionate share of contributions. 

Included in deferred inflows at June 30, 2015 is $17.3 million for the net difference between 
projected and actual earnings of pension plan investments for STRS Ohio. In addition , $7.9 million 
of University contributions to the pension plans subsequent to the measurement date of the pension 
plans were also reflected as deferred outflows of resources. 

See Note 13 for additional information on Defined Benefit Pension Plans. 

During fiscal year 2015. the University entered into a ten year agreement with Pepsi-Cola for 
exclusive pouring rights and sponsorship program. The University received initial support funds 
in the amount of $450,000 which are contingent upon the University utilizing the services of the 
beverage company over a ten year period. The unamortized amounts are reflected as Deferred 
Inflows of Resources in the Statem nt of Net Position. 
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Liabilities 

Liabilities large ly consist of accrued payroll and payroll withho ldings, debt unearned revenue, 
compensated absences, and net pension liability. The fo llowing table summarizes balances at: 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 
Accoun ts and construction payab le $ 6,445,554 $ 6,695,529 $ 4,895,024 
Pay ro ll liabi lites 7.76 1,247 7,041 ,9 19 7,543,6 16 
No tes payable 16,000,000 16,000 000 1, 139,444 
Bonds payable, net 69,45 1,237 64,756.4 16 66.658,996 
Unearned revenue 6,590,316 5,824,756 5,294,4 16 
Co mpens ated absences 8,798,062 9,0 16,430 9,843,762 
Refundable advance 2,089.646 2,527,796 2 58 1,299 
Other 1,587,617 1,42 1,973 810,173 
Net pens ion liability 175.354,454 146,345,693 127,685, 143 

Tota l Liabilities $ 294,078, 133 $259,630,512 $ 226,451 ,873 

Tota l liabi li ties increased $34.4 million or 13.3% from fisca l year 20 16 to fiscal year 20 17. Bonds 
payable increased $4. 7 mil lion largely due to a combination of the issuance of the 20 16 bond series 
which included the advance refunding of a portion of the 2009 bond series ,vith additional funds 
to construct a new bookstore and scheduled debt serv ice payments. The net pension liability 
increased $29 million or 19.8% from fiscal year 20 16 to fiscal year 2017. The OPERS pension 
liability increased $12.2 million or 26%; whereas the STRS Ohio liability increased $16.8 million 
or 17%. The OPERS and STRS Ohio net pension liabili ty balances were $5 8.7 million and $ 116.6 
million at June 30, 20 I 6 compared to $46.5 million and $99.8 million at June 30, 2016, 
respecti ve ly. 

Total liabili ties increased $33.2 million or 14.7% from fi sca l year 20 15 to fiscal year 2016. 
Accounts and construction payables increased large ly due to increased year end activity on 
construction projects. Notes payable increased $14.9 million primarily due to the financing of a 
$16 million energy conservation project during fisca l year 20 I 6. Bonds payable decreased $1.9 
million due to scheduled debt service payments. The net pension liability increased $18.6 million 
or 14.6 % from fiscal year 20 15 to fi sca l year 20 16. The OPERS pension liability increased $12.3 
million or 36%; whereas the STRS Ohio li ab ili ty increased $6.3 million or 6.8%. The OPERS and 
STRS Ohio net pension liabi li ty balances were $46.5 million and $99.8 million at June 30, 20 16 
compared to $34.2 million and $93.5 million at June 30, 20 15, respectively. 

See Note 8 for a further breakout of payroll and other liabilities, Notes 9 and IO for detailed 
information about the Uni versity's debt, Note 12 for information on long-term liabilities, and Note 
13 fo r info rmation on pension plans . 
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Net Position 

Net position represents the residual interest in the University's assets after deferred outflows of 
resources are added, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted. The 
reconciliation below presents the University ' s total net position removing the impact of the 
deferred inflows and outflows relating to pensions as presented in the Statement of Net Position. 

Total Net Position 
Add 

Dele1,-ed inflows of"rcsuurccs rclu1 ed to pens ion 
Net pension liability 

Subtract 
Delen-ed outno,.,vs o rreso urccs related to pension 

Total Net Position without GJ\SBs 68 and 71 

June 30 2017 
$ 61 957,254 

8,796 129 
175,354,454 

(40.400,833) 
$ 205,707,004 

June 30, 2016 
$ 63 170,901 

14,708,887 
146,345 693 

(26, 126,689) 
$ 198,098,792 

June 30, 2015 
$ 57,506,68 1 

17,935,757 
127,685, 143 

(10,611 , 171) 
$ 192,516.4 I 0 

The follovving tables summarize the categories of net position including segregation of the 
unrestricted net position relating to the impact of GASBs 68 and 71. 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted-non expcnd ab le 
Res tricted-expen dab le 

Unrest rict eel 
Total Net Pos ition 

Unres tricted (without GJ\SBs 68 and 71) 
Unre tricted (GA Bs 68 and 71) 

To tal Unrestricted Net Position 

June 30, 2017 
$ 135,402,713 

5,202,624 
26,178,068 

( I 04,X26, 151) 
$ 61,957,254 

$ 38.923599 
( 143,749,750) 

$ ( I 04,826, 151) 

June 30, 2016 
$ 134,289,27~ 

5, 178,994 
24,604,440 

( I 00,90 1,806) 
$ 63, 170,90 I 

$ 34,026,085 
(134,927,891) 

$ ( I 00,901 ,806) 

June 30, 2015 
$ 132.793 ,340 

5,062,070 
24 983,739 

( I 05,332,468) 
$ 57,506,681 

$ 29.677.26 1 
(135,009,729) 

$ ( I 05,332.468) 

Overall , the University's total net position decreased $1 .2 million or 1.9% from $63.2 million at 
June 30, 2016 to $62 mi 11 ion at June 30, 2017. This resulted from excess expenses over revenue 
and includes a $1.1 million increase in the net amount invested in capital assets, a $1.6 million 
increase in restricted net position, and a $3.9 million decrease in unrestricted net position. 
Excluding the impact of GASBs 68 and 71 which is included in unrestricted net position, total net 
position increased $7.6 million and unrestricted net position increased $4.9 million. 

The net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and 
deferred outflows relating to bond refunding reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes or 
other borrov,1ings that are attributable to the acquisition. construction, or improvement of those 
assets. The increase of $1.1 mi Ilion from fisca I year 20 16 to fiscal year 2017 was due to net capital 
additions of $16.4 million, current year depreciation or $ I 2 million, $2.1 million in deferred 
outflows relating to bond refunding and $4.8 million addition in outstanding debt. 

Overall , the University s total net position increased $5.7 million or 9.8% from $57.5 million at 
June 30, 2015 to $63.2 million at June 30, 2016. This resulted from excess revenue over expenses 
and includes a $1.5 million increase in the net amount invested in capital assets, a $300,000 
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decrease in restricted net position, and a $4.4 mi l lion increase in unrestricted net pos1t1on. 
Excluding the impact of GASBs 68 and 71 , total net position increased $5.6 million and 
unrestr icted net position increased $0.3 million. 

The overall $1.5 million increase in investment in capital assets from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 
2016 was due to spending $1.2 million for capital projects financed with bond proceeds, $13 
mill ion addition in outstand ing debt, net capital additions of $26.8 mil lion and current year 
depreciation of $1 I. I million. Outstanding debt was $80,756,4 16 at June 30, 2016 compared to 
$67,798 440 at June 30, 20 15. 

Restricted non-expendable net pos1t1on consists primarily of endowment funds held by the 
University. Changes in this category are driven primarily by investment performance, \-vhich was 
positive in both fisca l years 2016 and 2015 . 

Restricted expendable net position is subject to externa lly imposed restrictions governing their use. 
Changes in this category are due to the timing of revenues and expenses in funds provided by 
donors and grantors. The following table summarizes restricted expendable net position at: 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 
Current funds $ 15,451.718 $ 13,942,390 $ 13, 139,967 
Plant !imcls 10,500,894 10.442,672 11,636,581 
Quas i-Endowmcnts 166.()66 159,886 148,201 
Loan funds 59.390 59,492 58 990 

Tota l Restricted Expendable Net Position $ 26, 178,068 $ 24,604,440 $ 24.983.739 

Current restricted funds include grants and sponsored programs, gifts which includes scholarship 
donations and program support, and undistributed investment earnings on endowment funds . Plant 
funds primarily include donations for construction or renovation projects. Quasi endowments 
consist of non-endowed restricted gifts designated by management to function similar to an 
endowment fund. Loan funds consist of gifts established for loan programs to students. 

Tota l restricted expendable net position was $26.2 million at June 30, 2017 compared to $24.6 
million at June 30, 2016, an increase on $ 1.6 million. Current restricted funds increased $ 1.5 
million from $13.9 million at June 30. 2016 to$ I 5.4 mi ll ion at June 30, 20 17. Approximately 
$0.4 mil lion of the increase was due to investment income on University endowments exceeding 
the actual distributions al lowable based on the University's spending policy. Undistributed 
investment earnings totaled $3.8 million at June 30, 20 17 compared to $3.4 million at June 30, 
2016. Approximately $6.3 mi llion of the $10.5 mi llion plant fund balance at June 30.20 17 related 
to gifts wh ich have been internally designated for future debt service attributed to those projects. 

Total restricted expendable net position was $24.6 mi llion at June 30, 20 I 6 compared to $25 
million at June 30, 2015. Current restricted funds increased $0.8 mi ll ion from $13.1 million at 
June 30 20 I 5 to $13.9 mi llion at June 30, 2016. Approximately $7.6 million of the$ I 0.4 million 
plant fund balance at June 30, 2016 related to gifts which have been internally designated for future 
debt service attributed to those projects. 
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Unrestricted net position is not subject to external ly imposed restrictions and is designated for 
future operations, plant construction and ma intenance, and debt serv ice. The fo llO\,vi ng table 
summari zes unrestricted net position at: 

June 30, 20 17 .June 30, 20 16 June 30, 2015 
Cu 1Tcn I Hrn d s $ 17392.283 $ 10.966.922 $ 7.817.248 
Opera! ing reserv es 7.738,864 7,7 14,609 7.7 14,609 
Plant fund s 13,770,24 1 15,322,658 14, 124,645 
Loa n Jund s 22.2 11 2 1.896 20,759 
Tot a l w ith o ut GASBs 68 a nd 71 38,923,599 34,026,085 29,677,261 
G/\Sl3s 68 a nd 7 1 (143 ,749,750) (134,927,891) (135,009,729) 

Total Unres tricted Ne t Pos ition $ (104,826, 151) $ ( I 00, 90 1,806) $ ( l 05,332,468) 

Total unrestricted net position was ($ 104.8) million at June 30, 20 17 compared to ($100.9) million 
at June 30, 20 16. The decrease of$3.9 million from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 20 17 reflects 
an excess of expenses over revenues during fi sca l yea r 2017 from noncapital activity. Excl uding 
the impact of GASBs 68 and 71 , total unrestricted net position increased $4.9 million from $34 
million at June 30, 2016 to $38 .9 million at June 30, 20 17. Approx imate ly $2.9 million of the 
increase was primarily due to unrealized gai ns in equity investments in the Univers ity's non­
endowed investments from June 30, 20 16 to June 30, 20 17. Unreal ized gains and losses on 
investments from non-endowments are non-spendable in accordance with the Un iversity's non­
endowment investment policy and tota led $7.6 million at June 30, 20 17 compared to $4.8 million 
at June 30, 2016. 

Total unrestricted net position was ($ 100.9) million at June 30, 2016 compared to ($ 105.3) million 
at June 30, 20 15 . The increase of $4.4 million from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 20 16 reflects 
an excess of revenues over expenses during fiscal year 20 16 from noncap ital activity including a 
$ 1.6 million decrease due to unreal ized losses in the Un iversity's non-endowed investments from 
June 30 20 15 to June 30, 20 16. Unrealized gains and losses on investments from non-endowments 
are non-spendable in accordance with the Un ivers ity ' s non-endowment in vestment policy and 
totaled $4.8 million at June 30, 2017 compared to $6.4 million at June 30, 20 16. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

These statements present the operating resu lts and the non-operating revenues and expenses of the 
University. Annual State appropriations while budgeted for operations, are considered non­
operating revenues according to genera lly accepted accounting principles. 

A summary of revenues, expenses and changes in net position follows: 

June 30, 20 l 7 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 
Operaling Revenues 

Net tuit.ion fees and other student charges $ 80,777,230 $ 83,532,926 $ 84,357.825 
Auxi lia1y en terp rises 20 049,797 23,930,810 22,098,7 19 
Grants a nd contracts 11 ,682, 160 9,543,964 9,340,832 

Other 3,749,859 2,38 1,917 ?,469,689 

Total Operating Revenues 11 6,259,046 119,389,6 17 118,267,065 

Opera! in g Expenses 198,614.93 I 192,579,044 194,842,580 

Operating Loss (82,355.885) (73,189,427) (76,575,5 15) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
State appropriations 42 ,973.090 4 1,813,887 38,930,258 

Gills, g rants and contract. 30,197,521 30,771.333 33,714 863 

In ves tmen t income 5,513,140 793,961 1,566 035 

Other (5 ,743,642) (5,231 ,948) (5,333, 13 1) 

Net No nopcrnting Revenue · 72,940, 109 68, 147,233 68,878,025 

Loss Before Other Revenues Expenses , and Changes (9,415,776) (5,042, 194) (7,697,490) 

Other Revenues . Expenses, and Chan ges 
Sta te capita l appropriations 5,643,430 8,539,064 6, 174,875 

Cap ital gra nt s and g ills 2,446,9 17 2,081 ,270 1,069,282 

Other 111,782 86,080 65,57? 

Total Other Revenues -xpenses , and Chan ges 8,202, 129 10,706,414 7,309,729 

'hangc in Net Posit ion (1 ,2 13.647) 5.664,220 (387.761) 

Net Pos it ion at Beginnin g ol"lhe Year, restated 63 , 170,901 57.506,681 57,894.442 

Net Position at End ofthc Year $ 61,957.254 $ 63, 170,901 $ 57,506,681 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Revenues 

Following is a recap of revenues by source (operating, non-operating, and other sources), which 
were used to fund the University's activities for the years ended: 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 
Net tuition , lees, and o ther s tud ent charges $ 80.777.230 $ 83,532,926 $ 84,357,825 
Gills, grants and contracts 44,326,598 42,396,567 44,124,977 
State appropriatio ns 42,973,090 41 ,813,887 38.930,258 
A uxilia1y er11c1vriscs 20.049,797 23,930.810 22,098,7 19 
Investment income 5,5 13, 140 793,96 1 1,566,035 
State cap ita l appropriatio ns 5,MJ,430 8,539,064 6, 174,875 
Other revenue 4,223,889 3,265,243 2,942,894 

Tota l Revenues $203,507,174 $ 204,272,458 $ 200, 195,583 

Overa ll , the University's total revenues decreased $0.8 mi llion or 0.4% between fisca l year 2017 
and fiscal year 20 I 6. The majority of the University ' s revenue, 61 % in both fiscal years 2017 and 
2016, is attributed to State appropriations, and net tuition and fees. Combined, these two revenue 
streams decreased $1.6 million or 1.3% from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2017. 

Net tuition, fees and other student charges decreased $2.7 mi ll ion or 3.3% from fisca l year 20 16 
to fiscal year 2017 clue to increases in the scholarship allowance resulting from an increase in 
academic based scholarships, reflecting a higher proportion of academica lly prepared students. 
Gifts, grants, and contracts increased $ 1.9 mi ll ion or 4.5% from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 
2017 primarily due to a combination of a $0.8 mi ll ion decrease in Pe ll grants due to a slight 
decrease in the number of students receiving Pell grants and a $1 .8 mil lion increase in federal grant 
act ivity. State appropriation increased $1.2 million or 2.8%. Auxiliary enterprises revenue 
decreased $3.8 million or I 6.2% from fiscal year 20 16 to fiscal year 2017 mainly clue to the 
outsourcing of the bookstore. Investment income increased $4.7 mi llion or 594% primarily due 
to unrealized gains in non-endowed equity investments resulting from a more favorable market 
environment during fiscal year 2017. State capita l appropriations decreased $2.9 mil lion or 33.9% 
from fiscal year 20 16 to fiscal year 2017 primari ly clue to the completion of projects such as a 
steam plant, building renovations and roof repairs. 

Overall , the University ' s total revenues increased $4. l mi llion or 2.0% between fiscal year 2016 
and fiscal year 2015. The majority of the Universi ty 's revenue, 6 I% in fiscal year 2016 and 62% 
in fiscal year 2015, is attributed to State Appropriations and net tuition and fees . Combined, these 
two revenue streams incn;ased $2. 1 mi ll ion or 1.7% from fi sca l year 2015 to fi sca l year 2016. 

Net tuition, fees and other student charges decreased slightly over the prior year primarily clue to 
a minor decrease in enrollment. Gifts grants and contracts decreased $ 1.7 million or 4% due to 
combination of a $2.1 million decrease in Pell grants due to decreased enrollment and an increase 
of $1 mi ll ion in capital grants and gifts, including increased activity on state funded projects for 
additive manufacturing grants and gifts for future capi tal projects including a manufacturing 
innovation & commercialization center, a student success center and a multimedia center. State 
appropriations increased $2 .9 mi llion or 7.4% from $38.9 mil lion in fiscal year 2015 to $4 1.8 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

million in fiscal year 20 16. This increase was largely due to the State Legislature increas ing 
operating appropriations for higher education in exchange fo r prohibiting universities from rais ing 
undergraduate tuition . Auxi liary enterprises revenue increased $1.8 million or 8%, primarily due 
to a $1.3 million increase in housing revenue, resulting from increased room and board fees and 
an increase in the number of students residing on campus. Investment income decreased 
approximately $700,000 or 49%. This was due to net unrealized losses in non-endov,1ed 
investments resu lting from a less favorable market environment during fiscal year 2016. State 
capital appropriat ions increased $2.4 million or 38% due to continued efforts on the pa1t of 
management to more aggressive ly use state capital dol lars to address deferred maintena nce needs. 

Expenses 

Operating expenses can be displayed by either functional classification or natural class ificat ion. 
The funct ional classification can be found on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position. Following is a recap of total operating expenses by natural classification, with the 
impact of the GASBs 68 and 71 pension expense accrua ls segregated. 

Compensa tio n 
Operations 
Scho larships 
Depreciation and AmrntizaLion 
Operating Expenses without GASBs 68 and 71 acc ru a ls) 
GASBs 68 and 71 pension expense accru a ls 
Total Operating Expe nses 

June 30, 2017 
$ 115,235,986 

42,674,313 
19 897,530 
11,985,243 

189,793,072 
8.82 1,859 

$ I 98,614,93 1 

June 30 2016 
$ I 16,932,285 

45, 128, 168 
19,524,8 18 
11 ,075,6 1 I 

192,660,882 
(8 I ,838) 

$ 192 579,044 

June 30, 2015 
$120,755, 194 

43,982,094 
20,365,896 
11 ,472,394 

196,575,578 
(I, 732,998) 

$ 194,842.580 

Excluding the impact of GASBs 68 and 71 pension expense accruals, tota l operating expenses 
decreased $2.9 million or 1.5% from fisca l year 2016 to fiscal year 201 7 largely due to a $ I. 7 
million decrease in compensation and a $2.5 million decrease in operations. 

Salary and wages decreased $0.6 million or 0.6% from $88.5 million in fiscal year 2016 to $87.9 
million in fi scal year 20 17 remaining relatively flat and included a $0.8 million decrease due to 
outsourcing the Bookstore; whereas fringe benefits decreased $1.1 million or 4% fro m $28.4 
million to $27.3 million, respectively. The decrease in fringe benefits was due to a combination 
of a slight increase of $.05 million in hea lth care costs and a $2.6 million decrease in tuition 
remission largely due to restructuring the graduate ass istantsh ip program from being fringe benefit 
based to scholarship based. Overall fringe benefits as a percentage of sa laries and wages was 
31. 1 % in fiscal year 20 17 compared to 32. I% in fiscal year 20 16. 

Operations decreased $2.4 million or 5.4% from $45. 1 million in fiscal year 20 16 to $42.7 mi llion 
in fisca I year 20 1 7. The net decrease was largely due to the outsourcing of the bookstore, a 
decrease in utility costs as a result of the Un iversity building its own steam plant combined with 
an increase in federa l grant act ivity, primarily subawards and the Un iversity investing in a service 
agreement to ensure energy sav ings . 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

A large portion of all aid is classified as scholarship allowance on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Therefore, the $0.4 increase in scholarship expense is a 
partial reflection of a $0.8 million decrease in federal financial aid for Pell grant recipients and a 
$0.4 million increase in external support. Overall , the University disbursed $45.9 million to 
students in fiscal year 2017 compared to $41.6 million in fiscal year 2016, including$ I 9.3 million 
and $20.1 million in federal Pell grants, respectively. 

Excluding the impactofGASBs 68 and 71 , total operating expenses decreased $3.9 million or2% 
from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 2016, largely due to a $3 .8 mi Ilion decrease in compensation 
and a $1.1 million increase in operations. 

Salary and wages decreased $1 .8 million or 2% from $90.3 million in fiscal year 2015 to $88.5 
million in fiscal year 2016; whereas fringe benefits decreased $2 million or 6.6% from $30.4 
million to $28.4 million, respectively. Strategic efforts to control personnel costs continued 
thought the elimination of position vacancies and the implementation of the new OEA faculty 
agreement, which included a I% base salary adjustment, rank based bonus payments, retirement 
incentive payments, and reduced cost for summer and extended teaching service. The $2 million 
decrease in fringe benefits was primarily due to $I.I million decrease in health care expense 
primarily due to a decrease in health care claims. 

Operations increased $1.1 million or 2.6% from $43.9 million in fiscal year 2015 to $45.1 million 
in fiscal year 2016. The net increase resulted from various factors including a combination of 
investment in new software for graduate school recruiting and upgrades to existing software, an 
increase in cost of goods sold for the bookstore operations due to the elimination of inventory in 
preparation of a private vendor taking over the operations in June 2016, combined with decreases 
in utility usage and a continued decrease in bad debt expense resulting from the impact of higher 
admission standards and continued emphasis on financial literacy counseling to students. 

A large portion of all aid is classified as scholarship allowance on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Therefore, the $800,000 decrease in scholarship expense 
is a partial reflection of a $2.1 million decrease in federal financial aid for Pell grant recipients and 
a $900,000 increase in external support. Overall , the University disbursed $41.7 million to 
students in fiscal year 2016 compared to $42.4 million in fiscal year 2015, including $20.1 million 
and $22.2 million in federal Pell grants, respectively. 

Pension expense attributed to GASB 68 and 71 is allocated to institutional functions on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position and increased $13.1 million 
from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 2016. The increase was primarily due to differences between 
projected and actual pension plan investment earnings and the University ' s proportionate share of 
contributions. The University has no control over these accruals . 

Total operating and non-operating expenses for the University were $204,720,822, $198,608.238, 
and $200,583,344 in fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015 , respectively. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENTtS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Economic Factors for the Future 

Looking to the future, management believes the University is well-positioned to continue its 
favorable financial condition and level of excellence in service to students. 

Based on the most recent estimate provided by the Ohio Department of Higher Education State 
Share of Instruction (SSI) fundin g for the University is expected to remain stable over the next 
two-year biennium. This is consistent with the statewide SSI appropriation, which is also expected 
to remain stable for the next two-year period . The University ' s state funding leve ls are also tied 
to strategic decisions YSU has made to better position itse lf in the performance based SSI formula, 
in which degrees awarded and course completions continue to be primary drivers of SSI funding. 
Datasets used in the formula are based on a three-year rolling average, and are v,1eighted to take 
into account various at-risk student characteristics. The SSI formula continues to factor in 
discipline and program costs, and enrollment levels. 

The following graph reflects six years actual data for State Appropriations plus the budgeted 
amount for fiscal year 2018. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 
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[ □ Full-Time Equivalent 10,590 10,796 10,953 11 ,649 12,093 11 ,677 11 ,171 10,819 10,149 10,034 10,389 10,432 

I ■ Headcount 13,183 13,497 13,712 14,682 15,194 14,54 1 13,813 13,381 12,551 12,471 12,756 12,644 

As expected, Fall 20 17 enrol lments are 0.4% higher than the prior Fa ll semester on a full-time 
equivalency (FTE) basis. Hav ing ac hieved enrollment stability over the past two years represents 
a sharp turnaround in the University's enrollment trend, following a five-year decline in FTE 
enrollments between Fa ll 201 1 and 20 I 5. The results of the Un ivers ity's new incoming student 
enro llments, coupled with the academ ic quality of those students, provide significant cause for 
continued optimism for Spring 20 18 and beyond. 

For Fa ll 201 7, the University experienced increases in new freshman , internat ional and transfer 
students, and new students enro l led in the Honors Co llege . 

heshman GPA and ACT averages were both the highest in Un iversity hi story. Efforts to widen 
the University ' s appeal beyond its traditional footprint also appear to be showing continued signs 
of success. Enrollment increases we re noted for out-of-state freshman as well as the contiguous 
Ohio counties and num ber of high schoo ls represented in the freshman class. 

The University ' s freshmen to sophomore retention rate again increased from 72.24% to 74.85% 
from Fa ll 2016 to Fa ll 2017 representing further evidence that the University has stab ilized and 
reversed its enro llment trend . hna lly, early results for Fa ll 20 18 are even more positive than 
expected, running fa r ahead of Fall 20 17 at this same time. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION AT JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

AS SETS 
C urre nt Assets 

Cash and cash equivalent s 
Investm ents 
Restr icted investm ent s 
Int erest receivable 
Acco unts receivable. net 
Pledges receivable. net 
Loans receivable. net 
In vent o ries 
Prepaid expenses and unearned charges 

'fotal C u rrent Asset s 

Non c u 1-rcn t Asse ts 
In vestmen ts 
· ndowmen t s and ot her rest r ic ted investmen ts 

P ledges rece ivable . net 
Loans receiva ble. ne t 
Other noncurren l assets 
Ca h surrender value of lire in surance 
No nclepreeiablc cap it al assets 
Depreciable capit a l asse ts, net 

To tal Noncun-cnt Ass ets 
lota l Asse ts 

D fFF.RREDO l/WLOW OFRESO URCES 
Pe nsion OP ERS 
Pensio n ST RS 
Bo nd refundi ng 

Total Dcfon-c d Outllows ofResoun:cs 

LIABILrm::s 
C urre nt Lia hiliti cs 

Acco un ts payable 
Co n ·truct ion payable 
Payroll li abil it ie. 
Bonds payable 
Noles payable 
Capital lease payable 
Compensated abse nces 
Unearned rev en uc 
Oth er liabil ities 

To tal C ur-ren t Liahi liti cs 

No ncurrent Liabi li ties 
Bo nds payable, net 
Notes payable 
Capi tal lease payable 
Co mpensated absences 
Rcf'unclable advance 
Net pension liabil it y 

Tollll No ncurrcnl Liabilitie s 
To lal Liabilitie s 

D EFERR ED INFLOWS OF RES O UR CES 
Serv ice concessio n agrecrncnl 
Pension OPER.' 
Pension SJ'RS 

·1o1a l Dcfcr-.-cd l{csu1..-ccs of Inflows 

N l~J' PO Srno N 
Net irwcst rn en t. in capi ta l assets 
Rest r ic tcd - Nonexpcndable 
Rcslr ictccl - Expendable 
Unrest ri ct cd 

'fotal Ne t Posil iun 
Sec accompan y in g n t c I o fin ancial statements. 

22 

June 30 . 20 17 June 30. 20 16 

$ 20,34 7.943 $ 15,893.972 
42,885.49 1 36.906.44 1 

693.494 638. 165 
125.659 98 . 12 1 

11.43 7 .865 13,033. 177 
22:· .435 893.284 
449.341 422.496 
133.742 84.8 3 1 

1,065.25 8 1,050.643 
77,364,228 69,02 1.1 30 

15 ,638.099 17, 198 . 170 
9.095.277 8 .579.269 

584.448 827 .958 
1,069 .796 1,455.935 

3.899 171.180 
329.545 321.224 

24 ,736 .083 35 ,608.290 
194, 125.899 178 ,857,955 
245,583.046 '43 ,0 19.98 1 
322,947.274 3 I 2,041.1 I I 

20 ,900.096 16 ,422.322 
19,500.737 9 ,704.367 
2 ,053 ,409 

42 ,454.242 26, 126 .689 

3,44 1.896 3,653.797 
3,003 .658 3,04 1.732 
776 1.247 7,0-11.9 19 
2 6 10.000 2,455.000 

6 16 .89-1 
13 .657 

983.560 604 . 117 
6,590,3 16 5.824.756 
1,522 .277 1.42 1.973 

26.54 3.505 24,043 .294 

66 ,841.237 62 ,30 I .4 16 
15 .383. 106 16.000.000 

5 1.683 
7 ,8 14.502 8,4 12,313 
2 ,089.646 2 ,527.796 

175 .3 54.454 146,345.693 
267.534 .628 235.587.2 18 
294.078 . 133 259,630.5 12 

570.000 657 .500 
1.895 .450 2.2 14.446 
6.900.679 12.49-1 .-141 
9,366, 129 15.366.387 

I 35.402.713 134.289.273 
5,202.624 5, 178.994 

26 .1 78.068 24 .60-1.-1 40 
(104 .826. 15 1) ( I 00.90 1.806) 

$ 6 1.957.254 $ 63. 170.90 I 



THE YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION 
STATEMENTS OF FINANClAL POSITION AT JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

June 30, 20 17 June 30, 20 16 

ASSETS 
Cash and cas h equivalents $ 1,707,990 $ 4,739,753 
Investments 228,395,689 206,643,636 
Prope11y acq u ired for resa le to Yo ungs town State University 109,520 
Pledges receivab le, ne t 4,033,499 2,057,504 
Pledges receivab le fo r Young stown Sta te Un iversi ty, net 5,548,252 3, 182,7 16 
Prc::pa id expenses and ot her assets 986,450 1,040,373 

Prope1ty and equipment , net 50,590 59,229 
Bene fic ia l interest in rema inder tmsts 416,938 399,582 

TOTAL ASSEl'S $ 241 , 139,408 $ 2 18,232,3 13 

LI ABILITIES AND NET ASS Ers 
LIABILITIES 

Acco unts payable $ 489,963 $ 860,489 
Grant commitments to Youn gs town State Un ivers ity 8, 16 1,200 8,067,599 
Accrued liabilities and o ther 80,2 17 55,063 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,731,380 8,983, 15 1 

NET ASSErS 
Un res lricted 147,197,446 136,086,960 
Temporarily restricted 13,0 18,654 8,068,816 
Permanently res tricted 72, 191 ,928 65,093,386 

TOTAL NEl' ASSETS 232,408,028 209,249, 162 

TOTAL LIAB ILIT IES AND NET ASSETS $ 24 1, 139,408 $ 2 18,232,3 13 

See accompany ing notes to fina ncia l s tatements . 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 20 16 

June 30, 2017 Jund0,2016 
OPERATING IU£\'ENlJES 

Tuition, Ices, and other student charges (net of cholarship 
allowance of $26.026,072 in 20 17 and 22,136,886in 20 16) $ 80,777,230 s 83,532,926 

Federa l grants and contracts 5.728,561 3.848,977 
·talc grants and contracts 5.059.050 5. 123.960 

Local grants and contracts 340.687 169.703 
Private grants and cont ract 553.862 40 1,324 
Sales and services 565,764 43 1,584 
/\ uxilial)1 enterprises 20,049,797 23 .930.8 10 
Other operating revenues 3. 184.095 1.950.333 

Total Opc.-aling Revenues 11 6,259,046 119,389,6 17 

OPERATING EX PENSES 
Instruction 66,003. 147 64.295.468 

Re·carcl1 4.036.527 1.859,303 
Public service 6.556. 145 5,497,073 

Academic support 16,081 ,601 14,270,655 

Student ervicc 11,177.058 10,300.999 
Institu tional support 23.547. 742 22.745,633 

Operation and main tenance of plant 15.533.550 16.5 11.923 

Scholarships 15,630,86 1 15 ,218,376 

Auxi li;1ry enterpri ·es 28,063.057 30,804.003 

Deprecia ti on and amortization 11.985.243 11.075.6 1 I 

Tot:i l Opcrnling Expenses 198.614,93 1 192.579.044 

Operating Loss (82,355,885) (73 , 189.427) 

NONOPERATING llEVEN lJES (EXPENSES) 
State appropriat ions 42,973,090 4 1,8 13.887 

Fcdernl gra nts 19.790.347 20.658,870 

l'rivatc gins I 0,407, 174 10,11 2,463 

Unrestricted in vestment income, net of investment expense 4,598,736 289,877 

Restricted in vestment income, net (>!'investment expense 9 14,404 504,084 

Interest on capital asset-related debt (3 ,844.329) (3.939.548) 

Oth er nonopcrat ing i:xpenscs, net (1 ,899,3 13) ( 1,292,400) 

'cl Nonopcrnling Revenues 72,940, 109 68, 147,233 
Loss Before Other Rc,,cnucs, Ex penses, and Chnngcs (9,4 15.776) (5.04 2, 194) 

OTIIER REVENUES, EX PENSES, ANU CHANGES 
State capit al appropriati ons 5.643 .430 8.539,064 

Cap it al grants mid gills 2,446.917 2,081 .270 

01hcr 111,782 86,080 
Total Olhcr llcvcnncs, E:\: 11 cnscs, m11I Changes 8,202, 129 10,706.4 14 

Change In Ncl Posilion ( 1.2 13.647) 5.664.220 

NET POSITION 
Net Position al Beginning of lhc Year 63 , 170.90 I 57.506.68 1 
'el Position al End of the \'ca r· $ 61.957.254 s 63. 170.90 I 

Sec accompanying nolCS 10 linancial StalClllCll lS. 
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THE YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

REVENUES. GA INS AND OTI !ER SUPPORT: 

Contribut ions 
In-kind donations 
Investment earning 

Net realized gain on sak of in vestments 
Net unreal ized change in long-term inwsuncnts 

Change in benefi cial intcre. l in remai nder trusts 

Net as ets released from restrictions 
TOTAi. REVENUES, GAI NS A ND OT! !ER SU PPORT 

EXPENSES 

Distribution to Youngstown Stale Univers ity 

for scholarshi ps and other programs 
Admini strative expend itures 
Benefit for retired Young. town University faculty 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

DONOR REC LASS IFICATION. 

INCREASE (DECREASE ) IN NET A SSETS 

Net Assets - Beginn ing of Year 
Net ASS<'lS - End of Year 

RE VENUES, GAINS AND OTI-I EK SUPPORT: 

Contri butions 
In -kind donations 

Investment earnings 
Net realized gain on sale of inves1me111s 

Net unrea lized (loss) gain on long-term investmen ts 

Change in benefi cial interest in remai nder 1rus1s 
Net assets released fro m reslnclions 

TOTAL REVENUE , GA INS A ND OTI IER SU PPORT 

EXPENSES 

Distribution to Youn gsto\\11 Stale Umvcrsi ty 
for scholarships and other programs 

Administrati ve expenditure · 

Benefits for r.:tircd Youngstown ni vcrsny fac ulty 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

DONOR REC LASSH'IC/\TIONS 

INCREASE (DEC REASE) IN NET ASSETS 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 
Net Assets - End of Year 

See accompanying notes lo fin ancial sta temen ts 

s 
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Unrestricted 

2,836.64 2 
4.R-4 

1,806,580 

3_887.635 

I 3,92 1,388 

3.7 15.366 
2(1, 172 ,<165 

12,208,543 

2,852,536 

900 
I 5,06 1,979 

11. 11 0.-186 

136.086.960 
147,197.446 

Unrestricted 

4,562.193 

1.813.472 
2,002,727 

( I 3,579,678 ) 

3,908,238 
(1,293 ,048) 

12,982,554 

2,573.532 
1,1110 

I 5,557,186 

{1 6,850,234 J 

152.937.19.J 
136,086.960 

s 

June 30, 20 I 7 
Tempora rily 
Restricted 

3.772,845 

806,708 

1.733 ,243 

2,352,-108 

l} ,71 5,366) 

4,949.838 

4,9-19,838 

8.068.816 

s 

Permanently 

Restricted 

7,08 1.186 

17,356 

7,098,542 

7.098.542 

65.093,386 

S 13.0 I 8.654 S 72. 191.928 

June 30, 2016 
Tcmpornrily 

Restricted 

2,360.160 

765.181 
827.742 

1,224.733 

(3 ,908,238) 
1,269,578 

1,269.578 

6,799.238 
8,068,8 16 

Permanently 

Restricted 

7,472.708 

(4 2,079) 

7,430,629 

7.430.629 

S 65.093.386 

s 

Total 

13,690,673 

-1.85.J 
2.6 13.288 

5,620,878 

16,273,796 

17,356 

38.220,845 

12.208,54" 

2,852.536 
900 

I 5.06 1.979 

23. 158.866 

209.2-19, 162 
S 232.408.028 

s 

Tota l 

14.395.061 

2. '78.653 

2.830,469 
( 12,35-1 ,9-15) 

(42.079) 

7,407.1 S9 

12,982,554 

2.573 ,532 

1.100 

15,557. 186 

{8,150.027) 

2 17.399. I 89 
$ 209.2-19, 162 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 
Cash Flows from Operat ing Activit ies 

Student tuition and lees $ 79,975.455 $ 82.559.873 
Federal state, and local grants and cont rncts 11.089,855 7,794,9 15 
Pri vate grants and contracts 735.853 424. 144 
Sales and services or educational and other departmental ac tiviti es 21.783.8 1 I 23 ,356.83 1 
Payments to suppliers (46 .553.208) (46,16 1.692) 
Payments to employees (87,2 15,677) (89,007.809) 
Payments for benefit s (27.383.844) (29,236,967) 
Pnyments for scholarships ( 15.71 7.567) ( 15,270,134) 
Student loans issued ( 155.2 18) ( 130,430) 
Student loans co llected 527,506 ,J5 3,813 
Student loan interest and foes co llected 134.9 11 98,538 
Other receipts, net 2.944 .508 2,9 13,327 

Total Cash Flows Used In Operating Activities (59 .833.6 15) (62,205,59 1) 

Cash Flows from Nonca11ital Financing Activities 
Federal grants 19,338.860 20,6 19.4 77 
State ed ucational appropri ations 42.973 .090 4 1,8 13,887 
Direct lending receipts 60,549.455 63 .12 1,70 1 
Direct lending disbursements (59.206.33 1) (63,047,69 1) 
Pri vate gi lls 10 9 10,904 10,059,584 
Other 11 1,782 86,080 
Other nonoperating expenses ( 1.986.6 13) ( 1,376.750) 

Tota l Ca ~h Flows Provided by Nonca11ital Financing Act ivities 72.69 1.1 47 7 1.276.288 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Proceeds from sale of investments 14,462, 125 21.538,965 
Purchase of investments ( 19.452.44 1) (2 1,802.83 I) 
Interest on investments 5.4 85.602 790.082 

Tota l Cash Flows Used In Inves ting Activities 495,286 526,2 16 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Fina ncing Activities 
State cap ital appro priat ions 5.336.842 8,087,946 
Private capital gills and grants 3.035 .594 2,694 ,968 
Purchase of capital assets ( 16,211.965) (25,450, 146) 
Principa l payments on capital debt (2.466.389) (3.004.444) 
Bonds payable proceeds 5.248.15 1 
Notes payable proceeds 16 000 ,000 
Interest payments on cap ital debt (3,84 1,080) (3 ,503,8 18) 

Total Cash Flows Used In Capita l and Related Financing Activities {8.898 .847) (5. 175.494) 

Change in Cash and Cash Equi valents 4.453 ,97 1 4.42 1,4 19 

Cash and Cash Equ iva lents , Begin ning of Year 15,893,972 11.4 72.553 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 20.347.943 $ 15.893.972 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 20 16 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Operat ing loss 
Adjustments lo reconcile operat ing loss to net cash used in 

operating activi ties: 
Deprec iation and amortizat ion 
Provis ion for bad debts 
Gills in kind 
Chm1ges in assi:ts and li abi lities: 

Accmmts rece ivab le, net 
Loans receivab le. net 
I nvcntorics 
!'repaid expe nses and unearned chnrgcs 
Accounts payab le 
Acc rued and ot her liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liabili ty 
Delcrr..:d outflows o r resources 
Defe rred inflow o r resources 

Net Cash Flows Used In Opcrnl'ing Activities 

Noncash Investin g and Financing Transactions 

Add itional Capital Leases 

June 30, 201 7 
$ (82.355.885) 

11 ,985.243 
569.407 

39.5 17 

( 408.498) 
384.875 
(48,9 11) 
( 14 6 15) 

(2 11.90 1) 
82 1,3 14 
802.348 

(2 18,368) 
29.008.761 

( 14.274 . 144) 
(5,9 12.758) 

$ (59,833,6 15) 

$ 76.729 

June 30, 2016 
$ (73. 189.427) 

I 1.075.6 11 
854 ,147 
11 3, 11 3 

(2.6 12,9 I 7) 
307,328 

I, 10 1,5 85 
334 ,442 
690. 132 

(357,4 18) 
386,983 

(827,332) 
18.660,550 

( 15.515.518) 
(3 ,226,870) 

$ (62 ,205,59 1) 

$ 

In January 20 17, the Uni versity issued $25,525,000 in Series 20 16 Genera l Receipts bonds. The proceed · from the 
bond sale wen: used for a partial advance refunding o r the Series 2009 Gi.:111.:ra l Rece ipts bonds. resulting in a 
retireme nt orthcse b nds or$19.930 000. Sec Note 9 fo r fu11her discussion on thi s non-cash transaction. 

Sec accornpa nying notes to financial statements. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

Note 1- Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization and Basis of Presentation 

Youngstown State University (the University or YSU) is a coeducational degree granting state­
assisted metropolitan university and was established by the General Assembly of the State of Ohio 
in 1967. The University is a component unit of the Stale of Ohio. The University provides a wide 
range of opportunities in higher education primarily to residents in northeastern Ohio and western 
Pennsylvania. The University offers degrees at the undergraduate, graduate and doctoral levels. 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. I 4, The 
Reporting Entity , and GASB Statement No. 61 The Financial Reporting Entity : Omnibus, the 
University ' s financial statements are included, as a discretely presented component unit, in the 
State of Ohio s (State) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. In accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units , the 
Youngstown State University Foundation s (YSUF or Foundation) financial statements are 
included, as a discretely presented component unit, in the University ' s financial report by 
presentation of the individual financial statements of the entity immediately following the 
University's respective GASB financial statements. See Note 16 for additional information 
regarding the University 's component unit. 

The University's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB. 

Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63, resources are classified for accounting and 
reporting purposes into the following four net position categories: 

• Net investment in capital assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition , construction or 
improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted Nonexpendable - Resources subject to externally imposed stipulations that they 
be maintained permanently by the University. Such resources include the University ' s 
permanent endowment funds. 

• Restricted Expendable - Resources whose use by the University is subject to externally 
imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the pa sage of time. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

• Unrestricted - Resources that are not subject to externally imposed stipulations. 
Unrestricted resources may be designated for specific purposes by action of management, 
Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside 
parties. Substantially all unrestricted resources are designated for academic and research 
programs and initiatives, capital projects, and operating reserves. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis. The University 
reports as a Business Type Activity as defined by GASB Statement No. 35. Business Type 
Activities are those that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

Cash Equivalents - The University considers all highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at 
cost, which approximates fair value and excludes amounts restricted by board designation or 
whose use is limited. 

Investments - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 , Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Certain Investments andfor External investment Pools, investments are reported at fair value 
based on quoted market prices. Changes in unrealized gains (losses) on the carrying value of 
investments are reported as a component of investment income in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 

Endowment Policy - The University Endowment Fund consists of 99 named funds. Each named 
fund is assigned a number of shares in the University Endowment Fund based on the value of the 
gifts to that named fund . The University 's endowment spending policy states that annual 
distributions each fiscal year are set to 5% of the twelve-quarter average of the market value for 
the preceding twelve calendar quarters. In calculating the twelve-quarter average, census dates of 
March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 for the previous three years shall be used. 
Distributions greater than the calculated amount require written justification and Board of 
Trustees ' approval. 

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable consist of tuition and fee charges to students and 
auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, faculty and staff. Also included are amounts 
due from federal , state, and local governments, or private sources, in connection with 
reimbursement of allowable expenses under the applicable University grants and contracts. 
Accounts are recorded net of allowance for uncollectible amounts. 

Pledges Receivable - The University received pledges and bequests or financial support from 
corporations, foundations , and individuals . Revenue is recognized when a gift representing an 
unconditional promise to pay is received and all eligibility requirements have been met. In the 
absence of a conditional pledge, revenue is recognized when the gift is received. Pledges are 
recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts and are discounted to net present value. 
The University entered into a development services agreement with the Foundation. As part of 
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the agreement, new pledges are recorded by the Foundation and payments on University pledges 
are collected by the Foundation and remitted to the University on a monthly basis. 

Inventories - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost or acqu.isi tion value at date of gift. Infrastructure 
assets are included in the financial statements and are deprec iated . The Uni versity' s capitalization 
threshold fo r equipment furn iture and vehicles is $5 ,000· and fo r bu ildi ngs, building 
improvements and im provements other than buildings is$ I 00 000. Land is capitalized regardless 
of cost. Library purchases are excluded from capitalization and expensed as purchased. 

Deprec iat ion (including amortization of capital leased assets) is computed using the stra ight-l ine 
method over the estimated useful life of the asset and is not allocated to the fun ctional expenditure 
categories. Historica l co ll ecti ons, including assets that are held fo r public exhibition, educati on or 
research in furth erance of public servi ce, which are protected and preserved, are not depreciated . 

When capital assets are so ld, or otherwise di sposed of. the carry ing va lue of such assets and any 
accumulated depreciation is removed from asset accounts and the net investment in capital assets. 
The costs of normal maintenance and repai rs that do not add to the va lue of the capital asset or 
materially extend the capital asset's life are expensed when incurred. Estimated li ves are as 
fo llows: 

Class ifi cation 
Build ings 
Improvements to buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Moveable equipment, fu rni ture and vehicles 

Estimated Life 
50 years 

IO to 50 years 
15 years 

3 to IO years 

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue includes tu it ion and fee revenues billed or received prior 
to the end of the current fi sca l year end, but related to the period after the current fiscal year. Also 
included are amounts received fro m grants and contract sponsors that have not yet been earned 
and other resources rece ived before the el igib ility requirements are met. 

Compensated Absences - Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave benefits are in accordance 
wi th GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting.for Compensated Absences. The Uni versity uses the 
termination method to accrue sick leave compensated absences on the Statement of Net Position. 

Refundable Advances from Government for Federal Loans - Funds prov ided by the Uni ted Stales 
government under the Federal Perkins Loan program are loaned to quali fied students and re-loaned 
after co llections. These funds are ulti mately re fund able to the government and , therefore, are 
recorded as a liab ility in the accompanyi ng financial statements . 
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Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources - Deferred outflows of resources represent the 
consumption of resources that are applicable to a future reporting period , but do not require further 
exchange of goods or services. Deferred inflows ofresources represent the acquisition of resources 
that are applicable to a future resource period. Deferred outflows of resources in the University's 
financial statements consist of bond refunding, differences between projections and actual in the 
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) and Stale Teachers Retirement System of 
Ohio (STRS Ohio) pension plans, and contributions subsequent to the measurement dates of the 
plans. Deferred inflows of resources in the University s financial statements consist of 
unamortized service concession arrangements and differences between projections and the actual 
in the OPERS and STRS Ohio pension plans. 

Service Concession Arrangements - Service concession arrangements consist of an agreement 
with a food service provider and an agreement with a beverage company for exclusive pouring 
rights. Funds received are contingent upon utilization of services over a specified time period and 
are amortized over the term of the contract arrangement. Unamortized amounts are reflected as 
deferred inflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position. 

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outtlO\vs/ inflows of 
resources, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net positions of the OPERS and 
STRS Ohio and additions to/deductions from OPERS ' and STRS Ohio s fiduciary net positions 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by these pension systems. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. The pension systems report investments at fair 
value. 

Income Taxes -The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that the University ' s income is generally 
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. The 
University is subject to tax on unrelated business income. 

Measurement Focus and Financial Statement Presentation - Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing educational and instructional service in connection with the 
University's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues include student 
tuition, fees and other student charges. The University also recognizes as operating revenue grants 
classified as exchange transactions and auxiliary activities. Operating expenses include 
educational costs , administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition including State appropriations are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

Scholarship Al lov,1ances and Student Aid - Tuition, fees , and other student charges are reflected 
net of scholarship allowances in the Statements of Revenues Expenses, and Change in Net 
Position. Certain aid (such as loans and funds awarded to students by third parties) is accounted 
for as a third party payment (credited to the student ' s account as if the student made the payment). 
All other aid is reflected in the financial statements as operating expenses, or scholarship 
allowances, which reduce revenues. The amount reported as operating expense represents the 
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portion of aid that was provided to the student in the form of cash. Scholarship allowances 
represent the portion of aid provided to the student in the form of reduced tuition. 

Release of Restricted Funds - When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted 
and unrestricted resources are available, it is the University 's policy to apply restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as needed. 

Management's Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Disclosure of contingent assets and I iabi I ities at the date of 
the financial statements may also be affected. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements - In fiscal year 2017, the provisions of the 
following GASB Statements became effective: 

• GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting/or Postemployment Bene.fit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans issued June 2015 . The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2016. The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of 
information about postemployment benefits other than pensions ( other postemployment 
benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local 
governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability. 

• GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, issued August 2015. The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 31 , 2015. This 
Statement is intended to improve financial reporting by requiring disclosure of tax abatement 
information about a reporting government's own tax abatement agreements and those that are 
entered into by other governments and that reduce the reporting government's tax revenues. 
hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

• GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer De.fined 
Bene.fit Pension Plans, issued December 2015. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15 , 2015. The objective of this 
Statement is to address a practice issue regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting.for Pensions. 

• GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units - An 
Amendment of GASE Statement No. 14, issued January 2016. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15.2016. The objective of 
this Statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement 
presentation requirements for certain component units. 
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• GASB Statement No. 82, Pension issues-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, 
and No. 73, issued Marc h 20 16. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15 , 20 16. T he objective of this Statement is to address certain 
issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting/or Pension 
Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Pensions and No. 73 , Ac:c:ounling and 
Financial Reporting/or Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB 
Statement 68, and Amendments to Cerlain Provisions of GASB Statement 67 and 68. 
Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding ( 1) the presentation of payro l 1-related 
measures in required supplementary in fo rmation, (2) the selection of assumptions and the 
treatment of deviations from the gu idance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice fo r financial 
reporting purposes, and (3) the c lass ification of payments made by employers to satisfy 
employee (plan member) contri bution requ irements. 

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements - As of the report date , the GASB issued the following 
statements not yet implemented by the Uni vers ity: 

• GASB Statement No. 75 , Accounting and hnancia/ Reporting for Postemploy ment Bene.fits 
Other Than Pensions, issued June 20 15. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 20 17. The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve accounting and financial report ing by state and loca l govern ments for 
postempl oy ment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). 

• GASB Statement No. 81 , Irrevocable Split-interest Agreements, issued March 20 16. The 
requ irements of thi s Statement are effective fo r financial statements for periods beginning afte r 
December 15 , 20 16. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial 
reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement 
guidance fo r s ituations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. 

• GASB Statement No. 83 , Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, issued November 20 16. The 
requiren1ents of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
20 18. Thi s Statement addresses accou nting and financial report ing for certa in asset retirement 
obi igat ions. 

• GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduc ia,y Activities, iss ued Jan uary 2017. The req uirements of thi s 
Statement are effective for report ing periods beginning after December 15 , 20 18. The 
objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary 
act ivi ties fo r accounting and financial report ing purposes and how those activ ities should be 
reported . 

• GASB Statement No. 85 Omnibus 2017, issued March 20 17. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods begi nning after June 15 , 20 17. The obj ec ti v of 
this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identi fied during implementation 
and appl ication of certa in GASB Statements. 
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• GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishmenl issues, issued May 20 17. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June I 5, 
20 17. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and 
financia l reporting fo r in-substance defeasance of debt. 

• GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, issued June 20 17. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December I 5, 20 19. The objective of this 
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving 
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. 

The University has not yet determined the effect these Statements wi ll have on the University 's 
financial statements and disclosures. 

Reclassification - Certain reclassifications have been made to the fiscal year 20 16 amounts to 
conform with the fiscal year 20 I 7 presentat ion. These reclassifications had no effect on the total 
net position or change in net position. 

Note 2 - State Support 

The University receives support from the State in the form of State appropriations and capital 
appropriat ions. As required by GASB Statement No. 35 these are reflected as non-operating 
revenues on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 

State appropriations totaled $42,973 ,090 in fiscal yea r 2017 compared to $4 1,813 887 in fiscal 
year 2016. The State Share of Instruction (SSI) is determined annually by the Ohio Department 
of Higher Education. 

Capital appropriat ions from the State totaled $5 643,430 in fiscal year 2017 compared to 
$8,539,064 in fisca l year 2016 and included funding for equipment and the construction/major 
renovations of plant facilities . 

Funding for the construction of major plant fac ili ties on the University campus is obtained from 
the issuance of revenue bonds by the Ohio Public Faci li ties Commission (OPFC), which in turn is 
used for the construction and subsequent lease of the faci liti es by the Ohio Department of Higher 
Education. 

University facilit ies are not pledged as co llatera l for the revenue bonds. Instead, the bonds are 
supported by a pledge of monies in the Higher Ed ucation Bond Service Fund established in the 
custody of the Treasurer of State of Ohi o. If suffic ient monies are not ava ilab le from this fu nd, a 
pledge exists to assess a specia l student fee uniformly applicable to students in state-assisted 
institutions of higher education throughout the State. 

Outstanding debt issued by OPFC is not inc luded on the Un iversity's Statement of Net Position. 
In addition, the appropriations by the Genera l Assembly to the Ohio Department of Higher 
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Education for payment of debt service are not reflected as appropri ation revenue received by the 
University, and the re lated debt serv ice payments are not recorded in the University' s accounts. 

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For financial statement presentation purposes, cash in banks has been combined with the 
University 's cash equivalents and temporary investments in repurchase agreements and certificates 
of deposit. 

The aggregate cost of repurchase agreements. wh ich approximates fair va lue, included in cash and 
cash equ iva lents is $0 and $357,738 at June 30, 20 17 and 2016, respectively. 

Depository funds he ld in the name of the Univers ity are secured by a poo l of securities with a va lue 
of at least I 05% of the total value of monies on deposit at the depository bank. All collatera l, both 
specific and pooled is held by the Federa l Reserve Bank or by a des ignated trustee as agent for 
the public depositories used by the University. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 20 17 and June 30, 20 16 consist of the fo llowing: 

2017 2016 
Can·ying Amo unt $ 20,347.943 $ 15.893,972 

FDIC Ins ured $ 5,792, 147 $ 5,769, 116 
Un ins ured but co llatera lizccl by pools ofst:curit ies 

pledged by th e depository banks 4.05 ').773 4,927,22 1 
Un ins ured but asscls he ld in name ofYSU no t 

pledged a. co llateral e lsewhere 11 ,784,788 5,882,625 
Bank Ba lance $ 2 1,636,708 $ 16,578,962 

The difference in carrying amount and bank ba lance is caused by items in transit and outstanding 
checks. Depos its held in safekeeping by a bank, as trustee or escrow agent included in cash totaled 
$2,392,4 15 at June 30 20 17 and $3 746 878 at June 30, 2016, which approximates market. These 
depos its, including interest on the in vestments, are retained in the trust fo r projects funded by bond 
proceeds and payment of princ ipal and interest on outstanding indebtedness. The Un iversity's 
Star Ohio Plus account deposits are federally insured and tota led $5.042. 14 7 at June 30 2017 and 
$5,02 1,068 at June 30, 2016. 

Credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank fai lure, the Un iversity' s deposits may 
not be returned lo the Universi ty. At June 30. 20 17 and June 30 20 16, all uncollatera lized or 
uninsu red depos its of the Uni versity are exposed to credit risk. The University's investment policy 
and asset allocation gu idelines faci litate the management and monitoring of credit risk. 
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Note 4 - Investments 

The University ' s investment policy authorizes the University to invest non-endowed and endowed 
University funds in compliance with provisions of the Ohio Revised Code including House Bill 
524, Section 3345.05 of the Ohio Revised Code and all other applicable laws and regulations. 

In accordance with the Policies of the Board of Trustees of the University, investment types are 
not specifically limited but shall be made with care, skill , prudence and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in like capacity and familiar with such 
matters v,.iotild use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. 
Furthermore, investments shall be managed for the use and benefit of the University in a diversified 
portfolio that focuses, over time, on the preservation of capital, minimization of cost and risk, and 
maintenance of required levels of liquidity in the overall portfolio to meet cash flow requirements. 
The University utilizes an investment advisor and investment manager for non-endowment funds. 

The University's investments measured and reported at fair value are classified according to the 
following hierarchy: 

Level I - Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets. 

Level 2 - Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either 
directly or indirectly, which may include inputs in markels that are not considered to be 
active. 

Level 3 - Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources. 

The categorization of investments within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of 
the instrumenl and should not be perceived as the particular investment's risk. 

Assets classified in Level I of the fair value hierarchy are valued directly from a primary external 
pricing vendor. Level 2 inputs are valued using a matrix pricing model. 
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As of June 30, 2017, the University had the fo llowing investments measured at fa ir va lue: 

Fair Va lue Measu rement 
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Tota l 

U.S. Gove rnment Ob liga tions $ $ 5,57 1,562 $ $ 5.57 1,562 
Corpora te Bonds 9,999,400 9,999,400 
Foreign Bonds 29,639 29,639 
U.S. Gove rnment Bonds 2,254,00 1 2,254,001 
Bond Mutual Funds 11,096,293 11 ,096,293 
Prefc1Ted Stock 575,569 575,569 
Common Stock 6,171 ,4 16 6, 171 ,4 16 
Eq uity Mutua l Funds 32,614,48 1 32,6 14,48 1 
Tota ls $49,882, 190 $ 18 430, 17 1 $ $ 68,3 12,36 1 

As of June 30.2016 the University had the fo llowing in vestments measured at fair va lue: 

Fair Value Measurement 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

U.S. Govern men t Ob liga tions $ $ 7,557,2 13 $ $ 7.557,2 13 
Corpora te Bond s 9,92 1.463 9.92 1 463 
Fo reign Bonds 115,597 115,597 
U.S. Gove rnment Bonds 1,828,9 11 I 828,9 11 
Bond Mutual Funds 9,813,823 9,813,823 
Preferred Stock 590 448 590 448 
Common Stock 5,665,520 5,665,520 
Eq uit y M utu a l Funds 27,829,070 27,829,070 
To tals $43,308,4 13 $20,013,632 $ $ 63 322,045 

As of June 30, 2017. the University had the fol lowing investments and maturities using the 
segmented time distribution method: 

Investment maturities {in ~ears) 
Investment Ty pe Fair Va lue Less than I 1-5 6-10 More than JO 

U.S. Government Ob lig ations $ 5,571,562 $ $ 5.1 26,082 $ 445,480 $ 
Corporate Bonds 9,999,400 917,986 7,766,730 1,304,284 10,400 
Fore ign Bonds 29,639 29.639 
U.S. Governmen t Bonds 2,254,001 5.536 693,227 529.348 1,025,890 
Bond Mutual Funds 11,096,293 11.096.293 
Prcfc1Ted and Common Stock 6 746,985 6,746,985 
l:.qu ity Mutual Funds 32,6 14,48 1 32,6 14 48 1 
Tota ls $ 68,3 12,36 1 $5 1,381 ,28 1 $ 13.6 15.678 $ 2,279, 112 $ 1,036,290 

All ca llab le stocks were assumed to mature in less than one year. 
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As of June 30, 20 16, the University had the fol lowing investments and matu riti es using the 
segmented time distr ibution method: 

Investment Type Fair Va lue 
U.S. C,overnment Ob liga t ions $ 7,557,213 
Corpora te Bo nds 9,92 1,463 
Fo re ign Be nds ll 5,597 
U.S. Govern ment Bonds 1,828,911 
Bond Mutual Funds 9,813,823 
Preferred and Co mmon Stock 6,255,968 
Equ ity Mutua l Funds 27,829,070 

Less than I 
$ 

623,3 16 
100,154 

117 
9,8 13,823 
6 255,968 

27,829,070 

Investment maturities (in yea rs) 
1-5 6-10 

$ 6.75 1.994 $ 805,2 19 
8,065,572 

7 19.06 1 

1,222,429 
15,443 

399.044 

More than 10 
$ 

10, 146 

710,689 

Tota l. $63,322,045 $44,622,448 $ 15,536.627 $ 2,442,135 $ 720,835 
======== 

All callable stocks were assumed to mature in less than one yea r. 

As of June 30, 2017, investments had the following quality credit ratings: 
Jnvestment Typ e l·air Value Aaa Aa A 

CoqJO ra te Bonds $ 9,999,400 $ 2,263.325 $ 948,546 $2,5 16.540 
Foreign Bonds 29 639 29,639 
U.S. Go vernment Bonds 2,254,001 1.624,992 629,009 
Bond Mutual Funds 11,096,293 5, 102.185 1,566,469 8 15,96 1 
Totals $23,379,333 $ 9,020, 14 1 $3,144.024 $3.332,50 1 

As of June 30, 20 J 6, investments had the following quality credit ratings: 
Investment Type Fair Value Aaa Aa A 

Corpora te Bond s $ 9.921.463 $ 2,376.85 1 $ 1, 162,736 $2,298,069 
Fo re ig n Bonds 11 5,597 11 5,597 
U.S. Govern ment Bonds 1.828.911 1, 196.000 632,9 11 
Bond Mutual Funds $ 9.8 13,823 6, 144,635 1,725,631 753,301 
Tota ls $ 21,679,794 $ 9,717,486 $3,636,875 $3,05 1,370 

Baa 
$3,346,098 

3.361.938 
$ 6,708.036 

Baa 
$2,842,439 

872, 147 
$3 714,586 

Unrated 
$ 929,89 l 

249,740 
$ 1.179.63 1 

Unrated 
$ 1,24 1,368 

3 18, 109 
$ 1,559.477 

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the ri sk that changes in interest rates wil l adversely affect 
the fa ir value of an investment. The University 's investment policy and asset allocation guidelines 
facilitate the management and monitoring of its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increas ing interest rates . 

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
fulfil l its obligations. As of June 30, 20 17, $4, 156,099 or 6% of the University s portfolio was 
held in an intermediate bond fund and $1 ,272,0 IO or 2% was held in a short term bond fund. As 
of June 30 2016, $5,444,128 or 9% of the University's portfo lio was held in an intermediate term 
bond fund and $ 1,27 1,495 or 2% was held in a short-term bond fund . The Un iversity s investment 
policy and asset allocation guidelines contain provis ions to manage credit ri sk. 

Custodial Credit Ri sk - Custod ial credit ri sk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, the University will not be able to recover the value of in vestments 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investments that are both 
unregistered and uninsured are exposed to custodial credit risk if investment are held by the 
counterparty, or are held by the counterparty ' s trust department or agent but not in the name of the 
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University. At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the University had no exposure to custodia l cred it risk . 
The University does not address custodial cred it ri sk in its investment policy and asset allocation 
guide lines. 

Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will 
adverse ly affect the fair value of an investment or deposit. At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the 
University had no material exposure to foreign currency risk. The University does not address 
foreign currency risk in its investment po licy and asset allocation guidelines. 

Note 5 - Accounts and Loans Receivable 

Accounts and loans receivable at June 30, 20 17 and June 30, 20 16 consist of the following: 

2017 2016 
/\ccounts rece ivab le 

Stud ent account s $ 7,680.039 $ 9,938,609 
Gra nt s and contracts 2,389,961 2, 135,367 
State appropriations 2, 159,788 1,853,200 
Ot her receivables 3,362.455 4.226 260 

Tota l Accounts rece iv ab le 15,592.243 18, 153,436 
Less: Allowance for dou bt ful accounts 4, 154.378 5, 120,259 

Accounts rccc ivab le, net $ 11,437.865 $ 13.033,1 77 

Loans receivable - s tudent notes $ 2. 133,31 8 $ 2,520,738 
Less: Allo wance for doubtful acco unt s 614, 181 642,307 
Loans receivab le, net 1,5 19. 137 1,878,431 
Less: cu n-en t portion 449,341 422,496 
Loans receivable, no nc urrent po 11io n $ 1.069,796 $ 1.455,935 

Note 6 - Pledges Receivable 

Unconditional promises to give to the University recorded as pledges receivable at .lune 30. 2017 
and June 30, 2016 were as fo llows: 

2017 2016 
Pledges rece ivable $ 903,786 $ 1,853,249 
Les s: A llowancc for doubt Jl1 I acco unt s 53,81 2 85, 183 

Present va lue discount 40,091 46.824 
Pledges rece ivable, ne t 809,883 1.721.242 
Less: c urrent po 11 io n 225,435 893.284 
Pledges receivable, no ncurrcnt portion $ 584,448 $ 827,958 

Pledges have been discounted to net present va lue using June 30, 2017 and June 30, 20 16 U.S . 
Treasury Note rates of 1.75% (5-yea r) and 2.00% (7-year) in fi scal year 2017 and 1.1 20% (5-year) 
and 1.3 79% (7-year) in fiscal year 2016. 
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Note 7 - Capital Assets 

Capita l assets activ ity for the year ended June 30, 20 17 was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reduct ions Transfers 

Nond eprec i □ blc as s ets: 
Land $ 16,149,400 $ 124,750 $ $ 

Co ns tru ct io n in prog res s 18,623,424 6,523,695 8,728 ( 17,5 11.924) 
I listorica l treas u res 835,466 

Dep reciab le as s e ts : 
Bu ildin gs 280,003,837 238,447 
lmprove llle nts lo b uild in gs 59,574,347 2,516,009 14,211 ,741 

Improvements o ther than buildings 37,385,002 3,327,739 1,000.000 925,829 
Moveable equ ipment and furniture 33,673,810 3,628.366 1,308,373 2,374,354 
Veh ic les 1,336,632 186, 181 119,695 
Cap it a l leas e 76,729 

Total cos t 447,58 1,9 18 16,383,469 2 675,243 

Less acc umulat ed de pr..,cial ion : 
Buildings 168,874,774 4,902,434 234 ,076 
Improvemen ts to b uild ings 15,404,240 2,563, 150 

Improvements othcrth an buildings 18 954,783 2,085,877 1,000 000 
Moveab le equipment and furniture 28,840,275 2,302,855 1,308,372 
Vehic les 1,04 1,60 1 106,249 119,695 

Cap ital lease 14,067 
Tota l accumula ted dcpreciat ion 233 11 5,673 11 ,974,632 2662, 143 
Capital ass ets , ne t $ 2 14,466,245 $ 4,408,837 $ 13, 100 $ 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 16,274, 150 
7 626,467 

835 466 

279,765,390 
76,302,097 
40,638.570 
38,368, 157 

1,403 118 
76,729 

461 ,290, 144 

173,543, 132 
17 967 390 
20,040,660 
29.834,758 

1.028, 155 
14,067 

242,428, 162 
$ 2 I 8,86 I 982 

Projects completed and transferred from construction in progress during fiscal year 20 I 7 included 
the Steam Plant Project, building exterior repairs to Stambaugh Stadium and Moser Hall , 
Instructiona l Space Upgrades to Cushwa Hall and DeBartolo Hall , and Building System Upgrades 
lo several campus buildings. 
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Capita l assets activity for the year ended June 30, 20 16 was as fol lows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Red uctions Transfers 

No ndcprcc ia b le ass els: 
Land $ 16,093,678 $ 52,659 $ $ 3,063 
Co nstru ct ion in progress 6,129,774 17 2 11 ,492 (4,7 17,842) 
His torical treasu res 635,466 200,000 

Deprec iable assets: 
Buildings 280,566,952 14,867 577,982 
lmprovc111en1s to b uildings 50,692,906 5,955,294 67,723 2,993,870 
l.mpr vcment oth er th an buildings 35.0 15,97 1 2,485,094 1,000,000 883,937 
Moveab le equipment an d furnitu re 33,042,335 925,200 1, 130,697 836,972 
Veh icles 1,222,268 18 1,356 66,992 

Tota l cost 423,399,350 27,025,%2 2,843,394 

Less acc umulated deprec iation: 
Bui ldings 164,316,559 4 937,846 379,63 1 
Jmprovernen ls Lo bui ld ings 13.383. 106 2,048,75 1 27.617 
Improvemen ts othe r than buildin gs 18.093.828 1,860,955 1.000,000 
Moveab le eq uipment and furn iture 27 830, 142 2,125,804 1, 11 5,67 1 
Ve hic les 1,022,940 85,653 66,992 

Tota l accumulated <lcprec iat ion 224,646,575 11 ,059,009 2,5 89,9 11 
Cap it a l asse ts , net $ 198.752.775 $ 15,966,953 $ 253,483 $ 

Ending 
Ba lance 

$ 16, 149,400 
18,623,424 

835.466 

280,003,837 
59,574,347 
37,385,002 
33,673,810 

1,336,632 
447,581 ,9 18 

168,874,774 
15,404,240 
18,954,783 
28,840,275 

1,04 1,60 1 
233, I 15,673 

$2 14,466,245 

Projects completed and transferred from construction in progress during fisca l year 2016 included 
the Melnick Hall renovation, restroom renovations . and roof and elevator renovations to severa l 
bui ldi ng across campus. 

Note 8 - Payroll and Other Liabilities 

Payroll and other li abi Ii ties at June 30, 2017 and 2016 consist of the fo llowing: 

20 17 2016 

Payro ll liabilities : 

Accrued compensation $ 5,407,924 $ 5,058, 132 

Accrued bene fit s 185,40 1 105.79 1 

Accrued hea lth care benefits and in s urance paya ble 1,003,033 1,030,270 

Retirement system contribut ion payab le I, 164,889 847,726 

Totals $ 7.76 1,247 $ 7,04 1,9 19 

Oth er liabilit ies: 

Deposits he ld in cus tody $ 606,039 $ 476,606 

Interest paya ble 64 1,020 642,702 

Other liabilities 275,2 18 302,665 

Totals $ 1.522.277 $ 1,42 1,973 
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Encumbrances representing estimated amounts of expenses ultimately to result, if unperformed 
contracts in process at June 30, 2017 are completed, totaled $9 .4 mill ion compared to $9 .2 mil I ion 
at June 30 2016. These amounts do not constitute expenses incurred or liabilities. 

Note 9 - Bonds 

In January 2017, the University issued $25 ,525 ,000 in Series 2016 General Receipts bonds. The 
proceeds from the bond sale were used for a partial advanced refunding of the Series 2009 General 
Receipts bonds and to construct a bookstore. As a result, $ 19,930,000 of the 2009 bonds advanced 
refunded are considered to be clefeased and the liab ility was removed from the University's long­
term obligations. The partial advance refunding was undertaken to achieve debt service savings. 
This refunding transaction reduced debt service payments by $1 ,625, 147 and resulted in an 
economic gain of $1 ,238,710. For this partial advance refunding. the reacquisition price exceed 
the net carrying amount of the old debt by $2 111 ,642. This amount was recorded as a deferred 
outilow of resources and will be amortized over the remaining life of the new debt. As of June 30, 
2017, the amount recorded as a deferred outflow was $2,053 ,409. As of June 30, 2017, the 
outstanding principal of the 20 16 General Receipts bond was $25 525,000. As a result of the 
pa1tial advance refunding, the outstanding principals of the remaining 2009 General Receipts 
bonds as of June 30 2017 was $ 1,745,000. In connection with the issuance of the Series 2016 
General Receipts bonds the Univers ity also recognized a net bond premium in the amount of 
$1,578, 181 which wil l be amortized against interest expense over the life of the bond. 
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Details of the bonds payable fo r the General Receipts Bonds, Seri es 2016 as of June 30, 2017 
follow: 

Maturity Origina l 
Bond Compon ent Rate Yield Through Principal 
Seria l Bond 3.000%, 1.29%, 2018 $ 60,000 
Seria l Bond 3.000%, 1.56% 20 19 2 15,000 
Seria l Bond 4.000% 1.86%, 2020 1, 145,000 
Seria l Bond 5.000% 2.10% 202 1 1, 190,000 
Seria l Bond 5.000% 2.34% 2022 1,255,000 
Seria l Bond 5.000% 2.53% 2023 1,320,000 
Seria l Bond 5.000% 2.76% 2024 1,380,000 
Serial Bond 5.000% 2.93% 2025 I 455,000 
Seria l Bond 5.000% 3.09% 2026 1,525,000 
Serial Bond 5.000% 3.23% 2027 I 600,000 
Seria l Bond 3.000%, 3.32% 2028 1,665,000 
Seria l Bond 3.250%, 3.49% 2029 1,710,000 
Se ria l Bond 5.000% 3.44%, 2030 I 780,000 
Seria l Bond 5.000% 3.50% 203 1 1.870,000 
Seria l Bond 3.500% 3.74% 2032 1.945,000 
Seria l Bond 3.6251% 3.86% 2033 2.0 I 0.(J00 
Seria l Bond 3.625% 3.92'½, 2034 2,085.000 
Tenn Bond 4.000% 4.12% 2035 3 10,000 
Term Bond 4 .000% 4.12% 2036 320,000 
Term Bond 4.000% 4.1 2%, 2037 335,000 
Tenn Bond 4.000% 4. 12% 2038 350,000 

To ta l $ 25,525.000 

In June 20 11 , the Board of Trustees of Youngstown State Uni vers ity authori zed through a Board 
resolution the issuance of General Receipts Bonds, Series 20 11 in the amount of $ 18,660,000 . The 
$ 19,006,093 in bond proceeds were rece ived in July 20 11. The Series 20 11 Bonds were utilized 
to pay costs assoc iated with acq uiring the Uni versity Courtyard Apartments, any necessary related 
improvements thereto and to pay costs of issuing the Series 20 11 Bonds. 
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Details of the bonds payable for the General Receipts Bonds, Series 20 11 as of June 30, 2017 
fo llow: 

Maturity Orig in al 
Bond Component Rate Yield Through Principa l 
Seria l Bo nd 5.00% 2.90% 20 18 $ 625,000 
Se rial Bond 5.00% 3.28%, 20 19 655,000 
Seria l Bond 5.00% 3.58% 2020 690,000 
Seria l Bond 3.50% 3.82'½, 202 1 720.000 
Seria l Bo nd 3.75% 3.98%, 2022 450.000 
Seria l Bond 5.00% 3.98%, 2022 300 000 
Serial Bond 4.00% 4. 14% 2023 780.000 
Term Bond 5.00% 4.55% 2026 2.570,000 
Tenn Bond 5.00% 5.08% 2034 9.085,000 

Tota l $ 15,875,000 

As part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, states and loca l governments 
are permitted to issue two types of taxable obligations, referred to as Build America Bonds 
(BABs). The BABs include federal subsidies to offset a portion of interest costs as an alternative 
to issuing traditional tax-exempt obligations. 

In March 20 I 0, the University issued $25 ,335,000 of General Receipts Bonds (Taxable Build 
America Bonds) Series 20 IO to provide funding to pay costs associated with fac ilities planning 
for the Uni vers ity's College of Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) 
convert the old college of business building for use as a laboratory office and classroom space, 
renovate Kilcawley Center, reconfigure and replace campus parking fac ilities construct the 
WA TIS Center, relocate certain exist ing outdoor athletic facilities and pay the costs of issuance 
of the Series 20 IO Bonds. In September 20 11 , approx imately $9 .9 mi II ion was re-allocated from 
the Kilcawley Center project to Academic building renovation projects. 

The University designated the Series 20 IO Bonds both as Build America Bonds and as Qualified 
Bonds and intends lo apply for Credit Payments pursuant only to the extent that the Series 20 I 0 
Bonds remai n Qualified Bonds, which requires the University to comply with certain covenants 
and to establish certain facts and expectations with respect to the Series 20 IO Bonds, the use and 
investment of proceeds thereof and the use of property financed thereby. 
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Details of the bonds payable for the Genera l Receipts Bonds (Taxable Build America Bonds), 
Series 20 IO as of June 30, 2017 fo llow: 

Maturity Original 
Bond Component Rate/Yield * Through Principal 
Serial Bond 4.542% 2018 $ 1,065,000 
Serial Bond 4.959% 2019 1, 110,000 
Seria l Bond 5.109% 2020 I, 145,000 
Seria l Bond 5.209% 2021 I, 185,000 
Serial Bond 5.359% 2022 1,225,000 
Serial Bond 5.509% 2023 1,265,000 
Term Bond 6.109% 2026 4,085,000 
Tenn Bond 6.549% 2031 8,030,000 
Tenn Bond 6.579% 2034 5,700,000 

Total $ 24,810,000 

* Does not reflect impact o l'lcdcral subsidies 

In March 2009, the University issued $31 ,255 ,000 of General Receipts Bonds, Series 2009 to 
acquire, construct and equip the new Williamson College of Business Admin istration bui lding, 
renovate and replace portions of the existing Wick Pollock Inn, refund the remaining Genera l 
Receipts Bonds, Series 1997 and Series 1998, refund the General Receipts Bond Anticipation 
Notes, Series 2008 (BAN), and pay a portion of the costs of issuance of the bonds. In January 
2017, $19,930,000 of the bonds were advanced refunded. As of June 30, 2017, $19,930,000 was 
defeased and in escrow. 

Detai ls of the bonds payable for the General Receipts Bonds, Series 2009 as of June 30, 2017 
follow: 

Maturity Original 
Bond Component Rate Yield Through Principal 
Serial Bond 4. 125'1/i, 4 .200% 2018 $ 860,000 
Seria l Bond 4.375% 4.400% 2019 885,000 

Total $ 1,745,000 

The indebtedness created through all issues of the General Receipts Bonds is bound by the 
Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of March I, 2009. The Series 20 IO Bonds, Series 
201 1 Bonds, and Series 20 16 Bonds are also bound by the First Supplementa l Trust Indenture 
dated as of February 201 O; and in addition , the Series 2011 Bonds and Series 2016 Bonds are also 
bound by the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of Ju ly I, 20 11 , and the Series 2016 
Bonds are also bound by the Third Supplemental Trust Indenture dated December I, 20 I 0. The 
University has complied with all covenant requirements. 

The debt is secured by a pledge of all University general receipts, excluding state appropriations 
and receipts previously pledged or otherwise restricted. Payment of bond principal and interest on 
the Bond Series 2009 is guaranteed under a municipal bond insurance po licy. 
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Maturities of all bonds payable and debt service for fiscal years subsequent to June 30, 2017 follow 
(also see Note 12): 

General Receipts Bonds 
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

20 18 $ 2,610,000 $ 3,392, 133 $ 6,002,133 
2019 2,865,000 3,267,202 6. 132,202 
2020 2,980,000 3, 13 1,322 6. 111 ,322 
202 1 3,095,000 2,988,709 6,08" ,709 
2022 3,230,000 2,835,360 6,065,360 
2023-2027 18,405,000 11.440,850 29,845,850 
2028-2032 22,855,000 6.()38,620 28,893,620 
2033-2037 11 ,565,000 746,675 12,311,675 
2038 350,000 7,000 357,000 

Totals $ 67,955,000 $ 33 .847,871 $ 101 ,802,871 

NOTE: Expected ll1t ure tederal s ubs id ics lbr th e BA Bs is $5,229,266 

Federal subsidies received by the University were $495, I 09 in fiscal year 2017 and $499,551 in 
fiscal year 2016. These are reported as non-operating federal grant revenue. Interest expense on 
indebtedness was $3,305,769 in fiscal year 2017 and $3 422 907 in fiscal year 2016. On 
construction-related debt net interest cost of $85,640 was capitalized in fiscal year 2017, and 
$64,656 in fisca l year 2016. 

Note 10- Notes Payable 

During fisca l year 20 16, the University entered into a 14 year performance contract with Johnson 
Controls for campus energy savings measures. The contract amount of $16 million includes an 
assured performance providing for an annual measured cost savings of not less than $2 million per 
year and was financed through PNC Equipment Finance over 14 years at an interest rate of3.366% 
and requires annua l installment payments. Title to the assets vests in the University. Security of 
the debt is limited to the revenues appropriated for such purpose. 
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Details of the installment schedule follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 
2018 $ 616,894 $ 538,560 $ 1, 155,454 
2019 692,464 517,795 1,210,259 
2020 773.026 494,487 1,267,513 
2021 858,856 468,467 1,327,323 
2022 950,24 1 439,558 1,389,799 
2023 1.078,48 1 407,573 1,486,054 
2024 1,202.940 371,271 1,574,211 
2025 1.324,612 330,780 1,655,392 
2026 1.438,534 286, 194 1,724,728 
2027 1.549.581 237,773 1,787,354 
2028 1.712,798 185,614 1,898,412 
2029 1.869,325 127,961 1,997,286 
2030 1,932.248 65.039 1,997.287 

Tota ls $ 16.000.000 $ 4,47 1,072 $ 20,471 ,072 

During fiscal year 2006, the University entered into a ten year performance contract with Johnson 
Controls, which includes an assured performance providing for an annual measured cost savings 
of$1 ,296,298. The contract amount of$9,796,000 was financed with Chase Equipment Leasing, 
Inc. over IO years, at an interest rate of 3.53%, and required equal annual installment payments. 
The final payment of $1,179,666 was due December 23 , 2015 and included $40,222 in interest. 
Title to the assets vests in the University. The debt is secured by a pledge of all University general 
receipts, excluding State appropriations and receipts previously pledged or otherwise restricted. 

The University has complied with all covenant requirements. Interest expense on indebtedness 
was $538,560 in fiscal year 2017 and $516,64 I in fi sca l year 20 16 

Note 11 - Lease Obligations 

Capital Lease 
The University leases mailroom equipment under a capital lease agreement which bears interest 
of 9.06%. The net book value of capital leased assets included in net Capital Assets in the 
Statement of Net Position at June 30 20 17 and June 30, 2016 was $62,662 and $0, respectively. 
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h1ture minimum lease payments under the capital lease are as follows: 

Opemting Lease 

Year Ending June 30, 
20 18 
2019 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
To tal ruture minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 

Tot.al ob ligations under capita l lease 

Equipment 
$ 19,520 

$ 

19.520 
19,520 
19,520 

1,626 
79,706 
14,366 
65,340 

The Un iversity had an operating lease for the usage of mail room equipment which ended April 30, 
2016 at an interest rate of 9.904%. Lease payments totaled $18,347 in fiscal year 2016. 

Note 12 -Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity (also see Notes 9, IO and 13) for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as 
follows: 

Beginning Ending Cun-ent 

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Po1tion 
Bo nds payable 

Genera l rece ip ts bonds principal $ 64,815,000 $ 25,525,000 $22,385,000 $ 67 955,000 $2 610,000 
Unumoritized premium/cl is eounl (58,584) 1,578, 181 23 ,360 1,496,237 

Bonds payable, net 64,756,416 27. 103. 18 1 22.408.360 69.451 ,237 2.610.000 

Note paya ble 16,000,000 16,000.000 616,894 
Capital leases 76,729 11 ,389 65.340 13,657 
Compensated absences 9,016,430 60,000 278,368 8 798,062 983,560 
Refundable advance 2,527,796 17,375 455,525 2,089,646 

Net pension liability 
OPERS 46,516,739 29,005,875 16,778,056 58,744,558 
STRS 99,828,954 24,220,968 7,440,026 11 6,609,896 

Net pens ion liab il ity 146,345,693 53,226,843 24,2 18,082 175 354,454 
Tota l long-term liabilities $ 238,646,335 $ 80,484, 128 $47,37 1,724 $ 271 ,758 739 $4,224,111 
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Long-term liability activ ity (al so see Notes 9, 10 and 13) fo r the yea r ended June 30, 201 6 was as 
fol lows: 

Beginn in g Endin g Cu1Tent 
Balance Addition s Reductio ns Ba lance Po1t io n 

Bond s payab le 
Ge neral rece ipts bond s p rinc ipa l $ 66 680 000 $ $ 1,865 000 $ 64.8 15.000 $ 2,455,000 
Un amo ritizc cl pre mium/dis co un t (2 1,004) 37,580 (58,584) 

Bo nds payab le, net 66,658.996 1.902,580 64,756.4 16 2,455,000 

Note paya b le I, 139.444 16.000,000 1, 139,444 16,000,000 
Compe nsated absences 9,843,762 827,332 9,0 16,430 604, 117 
Rctim dab le advance 2,581 .299 19.677 73 , 180 2,527,796 

Net pensio n liability 
OPERS 34, 173,082 18,486,379 6 142,722 46,516,739 
STRS 93,5 12,06 1 2 1,206 222 14,889 329 99,828,954 

Net pension liabi lity 127,685, 143 39,692,60 1 2 1,032,05 I 146,345,693 
Total lo ng-tcm1 liab ilit ics $ 207,908,644 $ 55,7 12,278 $ 24,974 ,587 $ 238,646,335 $ 3,059, 11 7 

Note 13 - Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The net pension liab ility reported on the Statement of Net Pos ition represents a li ability to 
employees fo r pensions. Pensions are a component of exchange transactions - between an 
employer and its employees - of salaries and benefits fo r employee serv ices. Pensions are 
provided to an employee- on a deferred-payment basis- as part of the tota l compensation package 
offered by an employer for employee serv ices each fin ancial period. The obligation to sacrifice 
resources fo r pensions is a present obligati on because it was created as a resul t of employment 
exchanges that already have occurred. 

The net position liabi lity represents the Uni versity's proportionate share of each pension plan's 
collective actuarial present va lue of projected benefit payments attributable to past periods of 
service, net of each pension plan s fiduci ary net position. The net pension liabi lity calcul ation is 
dependent on crit ica l long-term variables, including estimated average life expectancies, earnings 
on in vestments, cost of livi ng adjustments and others. While these estimates use the best 
info rmation ava ilable, unknowable fu ture events requ ire adjusting thi s estimate annually. 

Ohio Revised Code limits the Uni versity s obligati on fo r th is liability to annually required 
payments. The Uni vers ity cannot contro l benefi t terms or the manner in which pensions are 
financed· however, the Un ivers ity does rece ive the benefit of employees' services in exchange fo r 
compensation including pension. 

GASBs 68 and 71 assumes the liabi lity is so lely the obligation of the employer, because ( I) the 
employer benefits from employee services; and (2) State statu te requires all funding to come from 
the employer. All contributions to date have come so lely fro m employers (which also includes 
costs paid in the fo rm of withholdings from employees). State statu te requ ires the pension plans 
to amortize unfunded liabilities within 30 years. If the amortiza tion peri od exceeds 30 years, each 
pension plan' s board must propose corrective action to the State legislature. Any resulting 
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legislative change to benefits or funding cou ld sign ificantly affect the net pension liability. 
Resulting adjustments to the net pension liabi li ty wou ld be effective \Vhen the changes are legally 
enforceable. 

The proportionate share of each pension plan's unfunded benefits is presented as a long-term net 
pension liability on the accrua l basis of accounting. Any liability for the contractually-required 
pension contribution outstand ing at the end of the year is included in payroll liabi li ties . 

Plan Descriptions 
University faculty are provided with pensions through STRS Ohio. Substantial ly all other 
Univers ity employees are provided with pensions through OPERS. Both OPERS and STRS Ohio 
are statewide cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans. Authority to establ ish 
and amend benefits for OPERS and STRS Ohio is authori zed by Chapters 145 and 3307, 
respectively, of the Ohio Revised Code. Both OPERS and STRS Ohio issue publicly available 
financia l reports. The OPERS report can be obtained at 
https://www.opers.org/financial/reports.shtml. The STRS Ohio report can be obtained at 
https:/ /www.strsoh .org/publ ications/an nual-reports.htm I. 

OPERS and STRS Ohio each offer three separate retirement plans: a defined benefit plan, a 
defined contribution plan, and a combined plan. 

OPERS and STRS Ohio Defined Benefit Plans pay serv ice retirement benefits using a fixed 
formu la based on age, years of service credit and final average sa lary (FAS). In addition to serv ice 
retirement, partic ipants are el igible for disability and survivor benefits. 

OPERS Member-Directed Plan and STRS Ohio Defined Contribution Plan are optional alternative 
retirement plans available to new members. Participants allocate both member and a portion of 
the employer contributions in an investment account. Po11ions of the employer contributions are 
al located to the defined benefit unfunded liabi li ties. Benefits are based on the member' s account 
value. 

OPERS and STRS Ohio Combined Plans offer features of both a defined benefit plan and a 
member-directed or defined contribution plan. In the combined plans, employee conh·ibutions are 
invested in self-directed investments, and the employer contribution is used to fund a reduced 
defined benefit along with disability and survivor benefits. 

Benefits Provided 
OPERS and STRS Ohio provide retirement, disability , annua l cost-of- living adjustments, and 
surv ivo r benefits for plan members and beneficiaries. The benefit provisions stated in the 
fo llowing paragraphs are cu rrent provisions and app ly to active plan participants. Vested, 
terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiv ing them yet are bound by the 
provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public serv ice. 
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OPERS Benefits 
Under OPERS retirement benefits are specific to each pension plan and members must meet the 
eligibility requirements based on their age and years of service credit within the plan. Retirement 
eligibility also varies by division and transition group. Members who were eligible to retire under 
lav,, in effect prior to SB 343 before January 7, 2013 are included in transition Groups A and B. 
Group C includes those members v,dlO are not in either of the other groups and members who were 
hired on or after January 7, 2013. 

State and Local members in transition groups A and Bare eligible for retirement benefits at age 
55 with 25 or more years of service credit or at age 60 with 5 years of service credit. State and 
Local members in transition Group Care eligible for retirement at age 57 with 25 years of service 
credit or at age 62 with 5 years of service credit. 

Under the Traditional Plan, for Groups A and B, the annual benefit is based on 2.2% of FAS 
multiplied by the actual years of service credit for the first 30 years of service credit and 2.5% for 
years of service credit in excess of 30 years. For Group C the annual benefit applies a factor of 
2.2% for the first 35 years and a factor of2.5% for the years of service credit in excess of35. FAS 
represents the average of the three highest years of earnings over a member's career for Groups A 
and B. Group C is based on the average of the five highest years of earnings over a member' s 
career. 

Under the Combined Plan, the benefit formula for the defined benefit component of the plan for 
State and Local members in transition Groups A and B applies a factor of 1.0% to the member's 
FAS for the first 30 years of service credit. A factor of 1.25% is applied to years of service credit 
in excess of 30. The benefit formula for transition Group C applies a factor of 1.0% to the 
member' s FAS and the first 35 years of service credit and a factor of 1.25% is applied to years in 
excess of 35. Persons retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years of service credit receive a 
percentage reduction in benefit. The defined contribution portion of the benefit is based on 
accumulated member contributions plus or minus any investment gains or losses on those 
contributions. 

Member-Directed participants must have att ained the age of 55, have money on deposit in the 
Defined Contribution Plan and have terminated public service to apply for retirement benefits. 
The amount available for defined contribution benefits in the Member-Directed Plan consists of 
the members' contributions, vested employer contributions and investment gains or losses 
resulting from the members ' investment selections. At retirement, members may select one of 
several distribution options for payment of the vested balance in their individual OPERS accounts. 

The OPERS law enforcement program consists of two separate divisions: Law Enforcement and 
Public Safety. Both divisions of members are eligible for special retirement options under the 
Traditional Pension Plan and are not eligible to participate in the Member-Directed or Combined 
plans. Public Safety members in transition Groups A and B may file an application for full 
retirement benefits at age 48 or older with 25 or more years of service credit or 52 or older with 
15 or more years of service credit. Public Safety members in transition Group C are eligible for 
benefits at age 52 or older with 25 years of service credit or at age 56 or older with 15 years of 
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service credit. Those members classified as La,v Enforcement officers are eligible for full 
retirement at age 52 or older with 15 or more years of service credit for Group A. Law 
Enforcement Group B is eligible at age 48 or older with 25 years of service credit or at age 52 or 
older with 15 years of service credit. Law Enforcement Group C is eligible at age 48 or older with 
25 years of service credit or at age 56 v,1ith 15 years of service credit. Annual benefits under both 
divisions are calculated by multiplying 2.5% of FAS by the actual years of service credit for the 
first 25 years of service cred it, and 2.1 % of FAS for each year of service credit over 25 years. 
These options also permit early retirement under qualifying circumstances as early as age 48 with 
a reduced benefit. 

OPERS administers two disability plans for participants in the Traditional Pension and Combined 
plans. Members in the plan as of July 29, 1992, cou ld elect coverage under either the original plan 
or the revised plan. All members who entered the System after July 29, 1992, are automatically 
covered under the revised plan. Under the original plan, a member who becomes disabled before 
age 60 and has completed 60 contribut ing months is eligible for a disability benefit. Benefits are 
funded by the employee and employer contributions and terminate if the member is able to return 
to work. The revised plan differs in that a member who becomes disabled at any age with 60 
contributing months vvi ll be eligib le for disability benefits until a determined age. The benefit is 
funded by reserves accumulated from employer contributions. Law Enforcement officers are 
immediately eligible for disability benefits if disabled by an on-duty illness or injury. Members 
participating in the Member-Directed Plan are not eligible for disability benefits. 

Dependents of deceased members who participated in either the Traditional Pension Plan or the 
Combined Plan may qualify for survivor benefits if the deceased employee had at least one and a 
half years of service credit with the plan, and at least one quarter year of credit within the two and 
one-half years prior to the elate of death. Law Enforcement and Public Safety personnel are eligible 
for survivor benefits immediately upon employment. 

Once a benefit recipient retiring under the Traditional Pension Plan has received benefits for 12 
months, an annual cost-of- li ving adjustment is provided on the member' s base benefit. Members 
retiring under the Combined Plan receive a cost-of- li ving adjustment on the defined benefit portion 
of their benefit. The cost-of- li ving adjustment varies somewhat, but is genera lly defined as the 
Consumer Price Index not to exceed 3%. 

STRS Ohio Benefits 
Any member may retire who has (I) five years of serv ice credit and age 60; (2) 26 years of service 
credit and age 55; or (3) 3 I years of service credit regardless of age. Eligibi lity changes wil l be 
phased in until August I, 2026 when retirement eligibil ity for unreduced benefits will be five 
years of service credit and age 65 or 35 years of service cred it and at least age 60. Retirement 
eligibi lity for reduced benefits will be five years of service credit and age 60, or 30 years of service 
credit regardless of age. 

The annua l retirement allowance is based on the average of the member' s five highest years of 
earnings multiplied by 2.2% for each year of credited service. For July I, 2015 and earlier, the 
annual allowance is determined by multiplying fina l average alary (average of three highest years 

52 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
N OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 20 16 

of earnings) by 2.2% for the first 30 years of credited service. Each year over 30 years is 
incrementally increased by 0.1 %, starting at 2.5% for the 3 1st year of contributing service up to a 
maximum al lowance of I 00% of final average salary. 

Under the Combined Plan, member contributions are allocated among investment choices by the 
member and employer contributions are used to fund the defined benefit payment at a reduced 
level from the regular Defined Benefit Plan. A member's defined benefit is determined by 
multiplying I% of the member' s final average salary by the member' s years of service credit. The 
defined benefit portion of the Combined Plan payment is payable to a member on or after age 60 
with five years of service. The Defined Contribution portion of the account may be taken as a 
lump sum or converted to a li fetime monthly annuity. 

The Defined Contribution Plan allows members to place all of their member contributions plus a 
portion of the employer contributions into an investment account. Investment allocation decisions 
are determined by the member. A member is elig ible to receive a retirement benefit at age 50 and 
termination of employment. The member may elect to receive a lifetime monthly annuity or a 
lump sum withdrawal. 

A Defined Benefit Plan or Combined Plan member with 5 or more years of credited service who 
is determined to be disabled (illness or injury preventing individual ' s abi li ty to perform regular 
job duties for at least 12 months) may qualify for a disability benefit. El igible survivors of 
members who die before service retirement may qualify for monthly benefits. New members on 
or after July I, 2013 must have at least IO years of qualifying serv ice credit to apply for disability 
benefits. Disability benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits. Members 
in the Defined Contribution Plan who become disabled are entitled only to the ir account balance. 
If a member of the Defined Contribution Plan dies before retirement benefits begin, the member' s 
designated beneficiary is entitled to receive the member's account ba lance. 

Under the Defined Benefit Plan members wi ll receive a 2% annual cost of living adjustment 
beginning on the fifth ann iversary of retirement. Under the Combined Plan, a cost of living 
adjustment is not avai lable on the service retirement benefit. For disability and survivor benefits, 
the basic benefit is increased each year by 2% of the origina l base benefit. 

Contributions 

Emp loyer and member contribution rates are established by the OPERS Board and the STRS 
Ohio Board subject to limits per Chapter 145 and Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code, 
respectively. 
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The employee contribut ion rates for the current and preceding two fiscal years follow: 

E Co ti"b f R t mp oyee n ·1 u 10n a e 

Period 
STRS OPERS OPERSLE 

Traditional ARP Traditional ARP Traditional ARP 
7/ I/ 16-6/30/ 17 14.0% 14.0% 10.0% 10.0% 13.0% 13.0% 
7 /1 /15-6/30/16 13.0% 13.0% 10.0% 10.0% 13.0% 13.0% 
7/1 / 14-6/30/15 12.0% 12.0% 10.0% 10.0% 13.0% 13.0% 

The employer contribution rates for the current and preceding two fi sca l years follow: 

Et I Co "b . • np oyer ntn ut1ons 
STRS OPERS OPF..RSLE 

Fiscal Year Traditional! ARP Tradition all ARP Tradition all ARP 
I STRS ARP I OPERS ARP 

7/ 1/ 14-6/30/17 14.00% 4.50% 9.50% 14.00% 0.77% 13.23% 18. 10% 18. 10% 

Univers ity contributions equal to the required contributions for the current and two preceding years 
fo llow: 

. 1p oyer on 11 U IOllS En I C t .b t" 
STRS OPERS OPERSLE 

Fiscal Yc:ar 
Traditional : ARP Traditfonal I ARP Traditional I ARP 

STRS ARP OPERS ARP 
20 17 $ 4.794,476 $ 3 12.907 $653,459 $ 4.725,695 $ 35,328 $606,748 $ 282,124 $ -
20 16 $ 4,841,012 $3 12,4 15 $658,094 $ 4,653,438 $ 34,885 $ 599 387 $ 305,8 15 $ -
2015 $ 4,996,652 $3 18,784 $668,878 $ 4,765,188 $ 35,380 $607,807 $ 295,408 $ -

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30 20 17 and June 30. 2016, the University reported a li abi lity for its proportional share 
of the net pension liability of OPERS/STRS Ohi o. The net pension liability was measured as of 
December 3 1, 2016 and December 31 , 20 15 fo r the OPERS plan and June 30, 20 16 and June 30, 
20 15 fo r the STRS plan. The total pension liability used to ca lculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial va luation as of those dates . The Uni vers ity 's proportion of the net 
pension liabi lity ,,vas based on its contributions to the pension plan relat ive to the contributions of 
all partic ipating report ing units. 

Meas urement Net Pension Liabilily Propmtionate Share Percent 
Plan Date 2017 2016 2017 2016 Change 

OPERS December 3 1 $ 58.744.558 $ 465 16,739 0.259332% 0.269315'¼, -0.009983% 
STR .July 1 11 6.609.896 99.828,954 0.348370% 0.361214% -0.012844% 

$ 175,354,454 $ 146 345,693 

Total pens ion expense for the years ended .lune 30, 20 17 and June 30, 20 16, including employer 
contributions and accrua ls assoc iated with r cogn ition of net pension li abi lities and related 
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deferrals, is presented below. Pension expense is allocated to institutional functions on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position. 

Plan 
OPERS 
STRS 
Total 

Fisca l year 2017 
Total 

Pens ion Expense 
$ 12,474.1 96 

6,498, 193 
$ 18,972,389 

Fiscal year 2016 
Total 

Pension Expense 
$ 6,942,880 

3,122 847 
$ 10,065,727 

At June 30, 20 17 and June 30, 20 16 the Uni versity reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actua l 

eamings on pens ion plan investments 

Changes in assumptions 
Change in proportionate share of contributions 

Univers ity contribut ions subsequent 

20 17 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

$ 4,804,830 $ 430,630 

18,487,233 

9,376 197 

19,699 8 365,499 

20 16 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

$ 4,554,639 $ 981,432 

13,840,7 16 7,179,589 

13,4 14 6,547,866 

to the meas urement date 7,71 2,874 __ 7....;.,7_1_7...;..,9_2_0 ____ _ 

Totals $40,400,833 $ 8,796,129 $26, 126,689 $ 14,708,887 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Uni versity 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a red uction of the net 
pension liability in the Univers ity 's subsequent year's financia l statements. Other cumulati ve 
amounts reported as deferred outflows and clef err cl inflows of resources related to pensions v,,ill 
be recogn ized in pension expense as follows: 

Year.Ended 
.lune 30 Amount 

20 18 $ 6,57 1,034 

20 19 7,279,236 

2020 7,29 1,350 

202 1 2,752,452 

2022 (2,453) 

Th ereafter 2 11 

Tota ls $ 23,89 1,830 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

For the June 30, 2017 financial statements, the total pension liability is based on the results of 
actuarial valuations and determined using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all 
periods included in the measurement: 

Acuarial cost method 
Cost of living 

OPERS as of 12/31/16 
Individual entiy age 
Pre 1/7/2013 retirees: 3% simple, Post 

STRS as of 6/30/16 
Ent1y age nomial 

2% simple applied as follows: for 
1/7/2013 retirees: 3% simple through members retiring before August I, 
2018, then 2.15% simple 2013, 2% per year; for members 

retiring August I, 2013 or later, 2% 
COLA paid on fifth anniversaty of 

retirement date 
Salaiy increases , including inflation 3.25%-10.75% 12.25% at age 20 to 2.75% at age 70 

2.75% Inflation 3.25% 
Investment rate ofreturn 7.5% 7.75%, net of investment expenses , 

including inflation 
Experience study date Period of5 years ended December 2015 Period of5 years ended July I, 2012 

Mortality basis RP-2014 mo1tality table projected 20 RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 
years using Projection Scale AA (Projection 2022-Scale AA) 

For the June 30, 2016 financial statements, the total pension liability is based on the results of 
actuarial valuations and determined using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all 
periods included in the measurement: 

Acuarial cost method 
Cost of living 

OPERS as of 12/31/15 
Individual en tty age 
Pre 1/7/2013 retirees : 3% simple, Post 

1/7/2013 retirees: 3% simple through 
2018, then 2.8% simple 

STRS as of6/30/15 
Entty age no1mal 
2% simple applied as follows: for 

members retiring before August I, 

2013, 2% per year; for members 

retiring August I, 2013 or later, 2% 
COLA paid on fifth anniversaty of 
retirement date 

Salaiy increases , including inflation 4.25%-10.05% 12.25% at age 20 to 2.75% at age 70 
2.75% Inflation 3.75% 

Investment rate ofreturn 

Experience study date 

Mo1tality bas is 

8% 7.75%, net of investment expenses , 

including inflation 
Period of5 years ended December20IO Period of5 years ended July I, 2012 

RP-2000 mortality table projected 20 RP-2000 Combined Mo1tality Table 

years using Projection Scale AA (Projection 2022-Scale AA) 

In March 2017, the STRS Ohio Board adopted certain assumption changes which will impact their 
annual actuarial valuation prepared as of June 30, 2017. The most significant change is a reduction 
in the discount rate from 7.75% to 7.45%. In April 2017, the STRS Ohio Board voted to suspend 
cost of living adjustments granted on or after July I, 2017. Although the exact amount of these 
changes is not known, the overall decrease to the University 's net pension liability is expected to 
be significant. 
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The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for OPERS was 7.50% and 8% as of 
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 20 16, respectively. The discount rate used to measure the total pension 
liabi lity for STRS Ohio was 7.75% as of June 30.20 17 and June 30, 2016. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that employer contributions wi l I be made at the contractua lly 
requ ired rates for all plans. Based on those assumptions, each pension plan ' s fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available lo make all projected future benefit payments for current active and 
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was app lied to al l periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The long term expected rate ofreturn on OPERS defined benefit investment assets was determined 
using a bui lding-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
are deve loped for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
al location percentage, adjusted for inflat ion. 

STRS Ohio utilizes investment consultants to determine the long-term expected rate of return by 
deve loping best estimates of expected future rea l rates of return for each major asset class. 

The target allocation and expected rea l rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
as fo llows: 

OPERS as of 12/3 1/16 STRS Ohio as of6/30/ I6 

Long-Tenn Long-Tenn 
Target Expected Real Target expected Rea l 

Asset Class Allocation Rate ofRetum Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
Fixed income 23.0% 2.75% Domes t ic equity 31.0% 8.00% 
Domes tic equity 20.7% 6.34% International equity 26.0% 7.85% 
International equit y 18.3% 7.95% A ltennatives 14.0% 8.00% 
Real estate 10.0% 4.75% Fixed income 18.0% 3.75% 

Private equity 10.0% 8.97% Rea l estate 10.0% 6.75% 

Other 18.0% 4.92% Liquidity re serves 1.0% 3.00% 
Totals 100.0% Totals 100.0% 
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OPERS as of 12/31/ 15 STRS Ohio as of6/30/15 
Long-Tenn Long-Tem1 

Target Expected Rea l Target expected Real 
Asset Class A llocation Rate of Return Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

Fixed income 23.0% 2.31% Domestic equity 3 1.0% 8.00% 
Domestic equity 20.7% 5.84% Internat iona l equity 26.0% 7.85% 
Internationa l eq uity 18.3% 7.40% A lt ermatives 14.0% 8.00% 
Real es tate 10.0% 4.25% Fixed income 18.0% 3.75% 
Private equity 10.0% 9.25% Real es tate 10.0% 6.75% 
Other 18.0% 4.59% Liquidity reserves 1.0% 3.00% 
Totals 100.0% Totals 100.0% 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the net pension liab ility of the Univers ity ca lculated using the discount rate 
below, as we ll as what the University 's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is I% l01vver and I% higher than the current rate. 

Plan 
O PERS 

rRS 

Plan 

O PERS 

STRS 

1% Decrease 
6.50% $ 89.980 
6.75% 154.965 

$ 244 945 

1% Decrease 
7.00% $ 68,93 7 
6.75% 138,670 

$ 207.607 

Pension plan fiduciary net position 

June 30 20 I 7 ($ in thousands) 

Current Discount Rate 
7.50% $ 58.744 
7.75% 11 6.6 10 

$ 175.354 

June 30, 20 16 ($ in thousands) 
Current Discount Rat e 
8.00% $ 46,517 
7.75% 99,829 

$ 146.346 

I% Increase 
8.50% $ 32.725 
8.75% 84.255 

$ 11 6.980 

1% Jncrease 
9.00% $ 23 ,070 
8.75% 66 983 

$ 90.053 

Detailed information about OPERS and STRS Ohio fiduciary net position is ava il ab le in the 
separately issued financial reports. 

Payable to the Pension Plan 

The Universi ty reported a payable of $1 ,0 10,759 and $749,991 fo r the outstanding amount of 
contributions to the pension plan required for the yea rs ended June 30, 20 17 and June 30, 20 16, 
respecti vely . 
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Note 14 - Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) 

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority for public employers to fund post­
retirement health care through their contributions to STRS Ohio and OPERS. 

State Teachers Retiremei1t Svstem of Ohio (STRS Ohio) 

Plan Description 

STRS Ohio provides access to health care coverage to eligible retirees who participated in the 
Defined Benefit or Combined Plans. Coverage under the current program includes hospitalization, 
physicians' fees , prescription drugs and partial reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B 
premiums. Pursuant to Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code, the Retirement Board has 
discretionary authority over how much, if any, of the associated health care costs will be absorbed 
by STRS Ohio. All benefit recipients, for the most recent year, pay a portion of the health care 
costs in the form of a monthly premium. 

Funding Policy 

Under Ohio Law, funding for post-employment health care may be deducted from employer 
contributions. Of the 14% employer contribution rate , 0% of the covered payroll was allocated to 
post-employment health care for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and I% was allocated 
for the year ended June 30, 2014. The University ' s contributions allocated to post-employment 
health care for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014 were $0, $0, $374,996, respectively. 

Ohio Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem (OPERS) 

Plan Description 

In March 2016, OPE RS received two favorable rulings from the Internal Revenue Service allowing 
OPERS to consolidate all health care assets into the OPERS 115 Health Care Trust. Transition to 
the new health care trust structure was completed July I.2016. As of December 31 , 2016, OPE RS 
maintains a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment health care trust. 
which funds multiple health care plans including medical coverage, prescription drug coverage 
and deposits to a Health Reimbursement Arrangement to qualifying benefit recipients of both the 
Traditional Pension and the Combined plans. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not 
qualify for ancillary benefits, including OPERS sponsored health care coverage. OPERS funds a 
Retiree Medical Account (RMA) for paiticipants in the Member-Directed Plan. At retirement or 
refund, participants can be reimbursed for qualified medical expenses from their vested RMA 
balance. 

In order to qualify for health care coverage, age-and-service retirees under the Traditional Pension 
and Combined plans must have 20 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care 
coverage for disability benefit recipients and qualified survivor benefit recipients is available. The 
health care coverage provided by OPERS meets the definition of an Other Post Employment 
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Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement 45. Please see the Plan Statement in the OPERS 
20 I 6 CAFR for details. 

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not require, OPERS to provide health care to its eligible 
benefit recipients. Authority to establish and amend health care coverage is provided to the 
OPERS Board of Trustees (OPERS Board) in Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Funding Policy 

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund health 
care through their contributions to OPRS. A portion of each employer's contribution to OPERS 
is set aside to fund OPERS health care plans. 

Employer contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of the earnable salary of active 
members . In 2016, State and Local employers contributed at a rate of 14.0% of earnable salary 
and Public Safety and Law Enforcement employers contributed at 18.1 %. These are the maximum 
employer contribution rates permitted by the Ohio Revised code. Active member contributions do 
not fund health care. 

Each year, the OPERS Board determines the portion of the employer contribution rate that will be 
set aside to fund health care plans. The portion of employer contributions al located to health care 
for members in the Traditional Pension Plan and Combined Plan was 2.0% during calendar year 
2016, 2015 and 2014. The portion of the University 's calendar year 2016, 2015 and 2014 
contributions to OPERS used to fund post-retirement benefits was $696,094, $692, I 05 and 
$715 ,110, respectively. 

As recommended by OPERS actuary, the portion of employer contributions allocated to health 
care beginning January I, 2017 decreased to 1.0% for both plans. The OPERS Board is also 
authorized to establish rules for the retiree or their surviving beneficiaries to pay a portion of the 
health care provided. Payment amounts vary depending on the number of covered dependents and 
the coverage selected. The employer contribution as a percentage of covered payroll deposited 
into the RMA for participants in the Member-Directed Plan for 2016 was 4.0%. 

Note 15- Contingencies and Risk Management 

The University is a defendant in various lawsuits. It is the opinion of University management that 
disposition of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements 
of the University. The University receives grants and contracts from certain federal , state and local 
agencies to fund research and other activities. The costs, both direct and indirect, that have been 
charged to the grants or contracts are subject to examination and approval by the granting agency. 
It is the opinion of the University's administration that any disallowance or adjustment of such 
costs would not have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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The University is self-insured for all medical and drug employee health care benefits and fully 
insured for dental and vision employee health care benefits. The self-insured plan includes stop 
loss provisions. 

Liabilities for estimates of outstanding claims and claims incurred but not repo11ed under self­
insurance programs have been recorded. Changes in the self-insured health care liabilities 
included in accrued health care benefits payable (also see Note 8) at June 30, 2017, June 30, 2016, 
and June 30, 2015 were as follows: 

Liability at beginning ofliscal year 
Current year claims including changes in es timates 
Claim payments 

Liability at encl of fiscal year 

2017 
$ 1,004,49] 

12,067,377 
(12,097,803) 

$ 974,065 

2016 
$ 1,208,506 

12,942,152 
(13 ,146,167) 

$ 1,004,491 

2015 
$ 1,092,773 

15,057,709 
( 14,941 ,976) 

$ 1,208,506 

Health insurance claims are based upon estimates of the claims liabilities. Estimates are based 
upon past experience, medical inflation trends, and current claims outstanding, including year end 
lag analysis. Differences between the estimated claims payable and actual claims paid are reported 
in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts ; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets· errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
University has joined with other state-assisted universities in Ohio to form an insurance pool for 
the acquisition of commercial property and casualty insurance. The University pays annual 
premiums to the pool for its prope11y and casualty insurance coverage based on its percentage of 
the total insurance value to the pool. Future contributions will be adjusted based upon each 
university 's loss history. The University had no significant reductions in coverage from the prior 
year. Insurance settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal 
years. 

The University part1c1pates in a State pool of agencies and univers1t1es that pays workers' 
compensation premiums into the State Insurance Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis (the Plan), which 
pays workers ' compensation benefits to beneficiaries who have been injured on the job. Losses 
from asserted and unasse11ed claims for the participating state agencies and universities in the Plan 
are accrued by the Ohio Bureau of Workers ' Compensation (the Bureau) based on estimates that 
incorporate the past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of each claim 
or incident and relevant trend factors. Participants in the Plan annually fund the workers' 
compensation liability based on rates set by the Bureau to collect the cash needed in subsequent 
fiscal years to pay the workers' compensation claims of participating State agencies and 
universities. 
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Note 16 - Component Unit 

Youngstown State University Foundation (YSUF) is a legally separate nonprofit organization 
exempt from federal income tax and classified as a public charity. YSUF is devoted to the support, 
expansion, and development of educational programs at the University that are useful and 
beneficial to the students and the community. Because these restricted resources held by the 
Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of the University, the Foundation is considered 
a component unit of the University. 

YSUF is a nonprofit organization that reports under F ASB standards. As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria 
and presentation features. With the exception of necessary presentation adjustments, no 
modifications have been made to YSUF's financial information in the University's financial report 
for these differences. 

YSUF investments consist of the following at June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant 
Active markets tor Observable Unobse1vable 

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Net Asset Balance at 
(Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value June 30, 2017 

Investmen ts 
Cas h and cash equivalen ts $ 1,425,565 $ $ $ $ 1,425,565 
Common s tock - U.S. s tocks 38, 193,906 38,193,906 
Mutual fund s: 

Exchange traded 40,601 ,321 40,601 ,321 
Money market 4,856,994 4,856,994 
Fixed income 19,502,023 10,494,303 29,996,326 
Eq uity 52,445,279 1.727,834 54,173,I 13 

Total mutual funds I 17 405,617 12,222,137 129,627,754 

A ltemativc investments: 
Private eq uity 16,190,876 16,190,876 
Hedge funds 41,025,801 41,025,801 
Commodities hedge funds 1,931 ,787 1,931,787 

Total alternatives 18,122,663 41.025,801 59,148,464 

Total $ 157,025,088 $ 12,222, 137 $ 18,122,663 $ 41 ,025,801 $ 228,395,689 
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Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significa nt 
Act ive markets for Obse1vab le Uno bseivab le 

Identica l Assets Inputs lnputs Net Asset 
(l.evel I) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value 

In vestment s 
Common s tock - U.S. s tocks $ 40,056 31 1 $ $ $ 
Mutual fund s: 

Exchange t raded 36,239,950 
Money market 5,890,174 
Fixed income 26,063.391 
Equ ity 23,849,330 11 ,296,714 

To ta l mutual rund s 92,042,845 11 ,296,71 4 

Alte rnative investments : 
Private eq uit y 10,249,382 
Hedge funds 50.668.925 
Co mmod ities hedge funds 2,329,459 

Tota I a lternatives 12,578 84 1 50,668,925 

Tota l $ 132,099, 156 $ $ 12.578.841 $ 6 1,965,639 

Balance at 
June 30, 2016 

$ 40,056,3 11 

36,239,950 
5,890,174 

26,063,391 
35, 146,044 

I 03 ,339,559 

10,249,382 
50,668,925 
2,329,459 

63 ,247,766 

$ 206,643,636 

Financial support from YSUF was $8 067,599 fo r the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 17 and 
$7,722,375 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 16. Financia l support from YSUF has been 
committed for fisca l year 2018 in the amount of $8 16 1,200. 

Complete financial statements for the Youngstown State Un ivers ity Foundation can be obta ined 
from The Youngstown State University Foundation. 
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OPF.RS 
Fiscal Year 2017 2016 2015 
Measurement Date 1/ I/ 16-12/3 l/16 1/ l/ 15-1 2/3 1/15 1/ 1/14-12/3 1/ 14 
University's propo1tion ofthe 

net pension liab ilit y (asset) 0.259332% 0.2693 15% 0.284240% 

University's propo11ionate share of the 

net pens ion liability (asset) $ 58 744,558 $ 46,5 16.739 $ 34, 173,082 

University's covered pay ro II $ 39,595, 198 $ 39 715,198 $ 40 769,505 

University 's proportionate s hare oflhe 

co llective net pens ion liability as a percentage 

of the emp loyers covered payroll 148.36% 117.13% 83.82% 

Plan fiducia1y net pos it ion as a percentage 
ofthe tota l pension liabilit y 80.00% 85.00% 84.00% 

STRS Ohio 
Fiscal Year 2017 2016 2015 
Meas urement Date 7/ 1/ 15-6/30/ I 6 7 /1 /I 4-6/30/15 7/1/13-6/30/14 
University's proport ion of th e 

net pen s ion liability (asset) 0.348370% 0.361214% 0.384452% 

University's propo1tionate s hare ofthe 
net pens ion liabil ity (asset) $ 11 6,609,806 $ 99,828,954 $ 93,512,061 

University's covered payro ll $ 41,521 ,2 17 $ 42,774,459 $ 44,3 13,510 

University's proportionate s hare of th e 

collective net pens ion liability as a percentage 

of the employers covered payro ll 280.84% 233.38% 211.02% 

Plan fiduciaiy net pos it ion as a percentage 
of the total pe ns ion liabi lity 66.80% 72. 10% 74.70% 

NOTE: Years prior to 20 15 are not ava ilable. 
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OPERS 

Statutorily required contribution 

Contributions in relat ion to the s tat ut orily required contrib ution 

Annual contribution deliciency 

Univers it y 's covered payroll 

Contributions recogn ized by the pens ion plan in relation to 

the statutorily o r contractually required employer contribution 

as a percent oft he employer's covered payro ll 

STRS Ohio 

Statutorily required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the statut orily req uired contribution 

Annual contribut ion deficiency 

Univers it y 's covered payro ll 

Contributions recogn ized by the pensi on p Ian in relation to 

t he s tatut orily or contractual ly required emp loyer contribution 

as a percent of thc cmployer' s covered p ay roll 

NOTE: Years prior to 20 15 arc not availabl e. 
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2017 2016 

$ 5,043, 147 $ 4,994, 138 

$ 5.043.147 $ 4,994, 138 

$ $ 

$39,901 ,665 $39,458,926 

12.64% 12 .66% 

2017 2016 

$ 5, I 07,383 $ 5, 153 ,427 

$ 5, I 07,383 $ 5, 153 ,427 

$ $ 

$4 1, 199,747 $4 1.52 1.2 17 

12.40% 12.41 % 

2015 

$ 5,095 ,976 

$ 5,095 ,976 

$ 

$40,264,007 

12.66% 

2015 

$ 5,318,436 

$ 5,315,436 

$ 

$42,774.459 

12.43% 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Note 1 - Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the 
federal a,vard activity of Youngstown State University under programs of the federal government 
for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with 
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the University, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of 
Youngstown State University. 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
Youngstown State University uses indirect cost rates ranging from 8-53% per the respective grant 
agreements. 

Note 2 - Loans 

Federal Direct Loan Program 
The University participates in the Federal Direct Loan Program (84.268). The University 
originates but does not provide funding for Federal Direct Loans (FOL). The amount presented 
on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards represents the value of new FOL processed 
by the University for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Federal Perkins Loan Program 

The amount presented on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the Federal Perkins 
Loan Program (84.038) represents the value of new loans made or received during the audit period, 
plus the beginning of the audit period balance of loans from previous years for which the Federal 
Government imposes continuing compliance requirements. The amount outstanding for the 
Federal Perkins Loan Program at .lune 30, 2017 is $1 ,927,436. Total new loans disbursed under 
the Federal Perkins Loan Program for the fiscal year ended June 30 2017 were $159,889, which 
inc ludes the loans to students and administrative expenditures. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Note 3 - Subrecipient Awards 

Certain funds are passed through to subgrantee organizations by the University . Expenditures 
incurred by the subgrantees and reimbursed by the University are presented in the Schedule of 
Expend itures of Federal Awards. For the years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, the 
University provided expenditures to subrecipients as follows: 

CFDA# hderal Granting Agency 20 17 2016 
11.619 Department of Commerce (DOC) $ 152,231 $ 69,971 
12.800 Department of Defense (DOD) 1,299,022 45,422 

$ 1,45 1,253 $ 115,393 
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,I.. Crowe Horwath. 
Crowe Horwath LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 
Youngstown. Ohio 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
business-type activities and discretely presented component unit of Youngstown State University 
(the "University") as of and fo r the year ended June 30, 20 17, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the University' s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated October 12, 2017. Our report includes a reference to other auditors 
who audited the financial statements of the Youngstown State University Foundation, a component 
unit of the University, as described in our report on the University' s financial statements. The 
financial statements of the Youngstown State University Foundation were not aud ited in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not fo r the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Uni versity's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Uni versity' s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists ,,vhen the design or operation of a contro l does not al low 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal contro l, such that there is a reasonable poss ibility that a 
material misstatement of the ent ity' s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a ti mely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness. yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Columbus, Ohio 
October 12, 20 I 7 
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> Crowe Horwath. 
Crowe Horwath LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 
Youngstown, Ohio 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Youngstown State University's (the "University") compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the University's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 201 7. 
The University's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Ma11ageme11t's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Re!!.ponsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance fo r each of the University's major federa l 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standard1·, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Pait 200, Un(fon n Adminislralive Requirements, Cos/ Principles, 
and Audi! Requirements.for Federal Awards (U ni form Guidance). Those standards and the Uni form 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
ev idence about the University's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federa l program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University's 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Eac/1 Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University's internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Columbus, Ohio 
October 12, 2017 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on vvhether the 
financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with GAAP: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiencies identified not 
considered to be materia I weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? 

Unmodified 

Yes X No ---

Yes X None ---
Reported 

Yes X No ---

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Federal A wards 

Internal Control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiencies identified not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 (CONT.) 

Identification of major programs: 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Number(s) 

U.S. Department of Education 
Student Financial Aid Cluster: 

Federal Pell Grant Program 
Federa l Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 
Federal Work-Study Program 
Federa l Perkins Loan Program 
Federal Direct Student Loans 

CFDA 

84.063 
84.007 
84.033 
84.038 
84.268 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750.000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk aud itee? 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

There were no findings for the year ended June 30 2017. 

Section III - Federal Award Findings 

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 20 17. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Prior Year Audit Findings 

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 20 16. 
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